
CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND 

AGENDA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Wednesday, October 16, 2024 at 4:00 PM 

City Hall – Council Chambers, 7358 Market St., Mackinac Island, Michigan 

I. Call to Order 

II. Roll Call 

III. Pledge of Allegiance 

IV. Approval of Minutes 

a. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting, held on October 2, 2024 

V. Approval of the Treasurer's Report 

a. Treasurer’s Report - October 16, 2024 

VI. Approval of Payments for: 

a. October 16, 2024 Payables 

b. October 17, 2024 Payroll Spreadsheet & Gusto Report  

VII. Additions to / Adoption of Agenda 

VIII. Committee Reports 

IX. Correspondence 

a. Letter from James Murray regarding the draft Master Plan  

b. Email from Kevin Doyle regarding the use of Manor V property by O’Boyle & Co. for 
materials storage during the Forest Way duplex construction  

X. Old Business 

a. Request for approval of two (2) trailer permits, submitted by Eric Bauer, for building 
material and snowmobile storage 

b. Request for approval for (3) vehicle permits, submitted by Belonga Excavating, to 
excavate a foundation for Andrew Doud at 1274 Mission St. 

c. Request for approval of (3) vehicle and (4) trailer permits, submitted by Action 
Service Construction, for the construction of workforce housing for the Harbour View 
Inn at 7596 7th Street 

d. Request for approval of three (3) quotes from Otis Elevator for Code Required 
Testing - CAT 1 Hydro Package (Community Hall, Stuart House, Courthouse) 

1



10/16/2024 Council Agenda Page | 2 

 
e. Winter Service Agreement Deviation  

XI. New Business 

a. Request for approval for the Maintenance Dept. to purchase new Poly Wafer kit 
(power broom) for John Deere tractors / street cleaning  

b. Request for approval to authorize the distribution of the draft Master Plan for review 
in accordance with the Michigan Planning Enabling Act 

c. Request for approval of the Lot Split Application, submitted by James Murray on 
behalf of Mission Street, Mackinac Island, LLC & Mission Street Cottage, LLC 

d. Request for approval of an Off-Island business license application for RNC Paint 
Systems  

e. Request for approval of (2) vehicle permits, submitted by Mission Point, for (2) CAT 
telehandlers for new shingles on the west end of the hotel  

f. Request for approval of (1) vehicle & (2) trailer permits, submitted by Enterprise 
Vending, to remove arcade games from Mission Point  

g. Request for approval of a vehicle & trailer permit, submitted by Robert Benkendorf, to 
move household goods to their new house in Stonebrook North  

h. Request for approval of a vehicle and trailer permit for Belonga Plumbing & Heating 
to move a job trailer to Forest Way Townhomes for work on Phase III 

i. Request for approval of a Off-Island business license application for Northern Bear 
Inc. dba Stanley Steamer Northern Michigan  

j. Request for approval of a vehicle permit for Northern Bear Inc. dba Stanley Steamer 
Northern Michigan for carpet cleaning – 1366 Church Street, 7300 Main St., & 1493 
Astor St.   

k. Request for approval of a trailer permit for Bob Hoffman to haul counter tops to his 
residence at 8704 Stonecliffe Dr. (Hoffman Haus) 

l. Request for approval of a preapproved vehicle permit, submitted by Belonga 
Excavating, for emergency sewer repairs at 7707 Mahoney Ave. (Callewaert)  

m. Request for approval of a Temp. Sidewalk Obstruction Permit for RNC Paint 
Systems  

n. Request for approval of a vehicle permit, submitted by RNC Paint Systems, for 
painting at Mission Church - 6670 Main St.  

o. Request for approval of (7) trailer permits, submitted by Fabcon Precast, for the 
mobilization of precast concrete panel installation at the Wastewater Treatment 
project 

2



10/16/2024 Council Agenda Page | 3 

 
p. Request for approval of a vehicle permit, submitted by O’Boyle & Co, to haul trusses 

to the Forest Way Townhomes phase III project  

q. Request for approval of an Off-Island Business License application for Crosscut 
Concrete Cutting, Inc.  

r. Request for approval of (2) vehicle & (2) trailer permits, submitted by Cupps 
Masonry, for work at the Hoban Hill & School housing projects 

s. Request for approval for (3) vehicle & (1) trailer permit, submitted by Belonga 
Excavating, for work at school for new housing   

t. Request for approval of (2) vehicle permits, submitted by Chippewa Hotel, for 
Schwab Contracting to install a new roof at the Millennium, located at 6918 Main St.  

u. Request for approval to enter in to closed session to discuss a written attorney 
opinion regarding pending litigation  

XII. Miscellaneous / General Council Discussion / Additional Agenda Items 

XIII. Adjournment 

3



CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

Wednesday, October 02, 2024 at 4:00 PM 

City Hall – Council Chambers, 7358 Market St., Mackinac Island, Michigan 

I. Call to Order 

Mayor Doud called the meeting to order at 4:00 pm 
 

II. Roll Call 

PRESENT

Richard Chambers 

Tom Corrigan 

Steven Moskwa 

Anneke Myers 

Alan Sehoyan 

Jason St. Onge 
 

IV. Additions to / Adoption of Agenda 

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Sehoyan, to adopt the agenda as presented.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge  
 

V. Approval of Minutes 

− Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting, held on September 18, 2024 

o Mayor Doud stated the minutes stood approved as presented.  

− Minutes of the Special Joint Meeting of the Mackinac Island State Park Commission and Mackinac 

Island City Council, held on September 27, 2024 

o Mayor Doud stated the minutes stood approved as presented. 

− Minutes of the Special City Council Meeting, held on September 27, 2024 

o Mayor Doud stated the minutes stood approved as presented. 
 

VI. Approval of the Treasurer's Report 

− The October 2, 2024 Treasurer’s Report was presented.  

o Mayor Doud stated that the Treasurer's Report was placed on file as presented.  
 

VII. Approval of Payments for: 

− Hold the bill from Northern Power Electric for the scoreboard at Turtle Park - $730.50 – until they 

can be contacted for further information.  

− Community Hall freezers shipped out today.  

− MIFD October 2024 bi-annual payroll included.  

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Corrigan, to pay the bills and payrolls and to hold the Northern Power 

Electric bill. 

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge  
 

VIII. Committee Reports 

− The Great Lakes Alliance 2024 conference report was presented.  

Motion made by Sehoyan, Seconded by Moskwa, to place the report on file. 

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 
 

X. Old Business 

− Trailer and vehicle permit, submitted by Mackinac Landscape and Garden, for work at the McCarty 

residence located in Trillium  

o Dennis Dombroski noted that this is not mapped as a road, but rather a pedestrian easement  

▪ When Trillium was developed, City ordinance stated all roads needed to be hard 

paved, and this was not done as it is a pedestrian pathway - problem is it is being 

used as a road 

o Councilwoman Myers commented that it is the HOA's responsibility to guarantee the 10-foot 

easement – this was part of the approved site plan when Trillium was developed.  

 
 

4

Section IV, Itema.



Pg. 2 of the October 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting  
 

o Councilman St. Onge noted that he agrees with Councilwoman Myers - original plotting 

shows a 10-foot easement and that needs to remain. Don't want this to be closed off to taxis, 

drays, emergency response vehicles  

o Mr. McCarty commented that he does not want to shut off public access. Livery's & 

carriages are a danger to bikes and pedestrians on this pathway as it is not large enough for 

passing. Have talked to many neighbors, and they don't like Maple Trail being used as a 

transient road. Unmaintained trail - horse manure, ruts, holes - no one cleans it. Would 

simply like to move his landscaping to designate where his property ends and where the 

easement starts. Have also seen multiple vehicles using this as a pass-through road.   

o Councilman St. Onge commented that the road should not be constricted to less than 10 feet 

- concern as a councilman and fire chief  

o Liz Burt, HOA president - met with Mr. McCarty and shared her concerns about emergency 

response vehicles not being able to get through. Also concerned about rocks being moved 

and people traversing at night and causing an accident 

o Councilman Moskwa commented that he was sympathetic to the property owner’s rights, but 

on a civic level, legally what can the City do since this is an HOA  

o Attorney Evashevski inquired if this was a private road, if there were easements, and if it is 

open to the public – at this point we need more information. Potential safety issue.  

o Mr. McCarty commented that he does have landscape lighting along the pathway, and would 

put further ones where the new landscaping would be moved to.  

o Mayor Doud commented that she would like to let Attorney Evashevski take a closer look at 

this, and would like to send the matter to the Streets Committee for further review  

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Corrigan, to table the issue for further information and to send to the 

Streets Committee.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge  
 

XI. New Business 

− Presentation from Arnold Transit regarding Winter Service  

o Veronica Dobrowolski 

▪ Plenty of continued work to do on fleet of vessels 

▪ Shepler's will be extending their season for the month of November, but will run 

under the Mackinac Island Ferry Company (MIFC) Winter Service Agreement 

(WSA) 

• In everyone's best interest for Shepler’s to continue as they are now - their 

employees, vessels, and docks 

• Will be operating the Captain Shepler and the Wyandot will be operated, 

Shepler's dock St. Ignace and Mackinac Island 11/1/24 - 11/30/24 

▪ Schedule will be the same as what was approved for MIFC with the exception of the 

4:00 departure becoming a 4:30 departure.  

▪ Tickets will be the same as what was approved in the MIFC WSA  

▪ Parking lots and rates 

• No valet options 

• Shepler’s St. Ignace dock has 740 spots 

o Free day parking / $20.00 overnight parking 

o Lot behind the Driftwood, McGregor, & Railroad Dock lots are free 

o Shepler will be shuttling to all lots 

▪ Will continue with the MIFC text alerts / updates  

o Councilman Corrigan noted that the Sunday after Thanksgiving is December 1st - would like 

a known schedule for that day - easiest would be for the November schedule to go through 

12/1 rather than 11/30  

▪ Ms. Dobrowolski commented that she was ok with making that change  

o Councilman St. Onge inquired what the plan was if scum ice forms before November 30th? 

▪ Ms. Dobrowolski responded that there is a back up vessel in place through Arnold 

Transit / MIFC – there will be no interruption to service if the Shepler fleet has to be 

pulled   
 

 

 

 

5

Section IV, Itema.



Pg. 3 of the October 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting  
 

         Arnold Transit Cont. 

▪ Chris Shepler noted the possible problem of accessing the Mackinaw City harbor 

where the Shepler’s fleet is stored for the winter – so if ice begins to form, Shepler 

will need to pull their boats from both ports  

o Huron Update 

▪ Had an environmental assessor out last Saturday - waiting for those results  

▪ Some asbestos and possibly lead paint 

▪ Once results are received, the plan is to blast the entire boat will be blasted – If the 

Coast Guard ok's, then repairs can continue 

• Coast Guard may allow the work to be done in phases - as long as there is a 

plan the Coast Guard may give some concessions.  

o Continuing work on the Ottawa - reduction gears should be in this week, one motor almost 

in and the other should follow shortly, insulated wall to go up, looking at electric heat via a 

generator  

▪ Working on the Straits II as a backup - insulated wall and new windows, addition of 

heat  

o Thanksgiving Day schedule 

▪ Councilman St. Onge noted that the 2:30 St. Ignace and 3:30 Mackinac Island 

departures could be changed to a 12:30 St. Ignace and 1:00 Mackinac Island 

departure – same as last year, lines up with holiday events happening that day  

• Ms. Dobrowolski & Mr. Shepler both agreed to that 

o For the November 8th – November 27th schedule  

▪ Councilwoman Myers requested that if Shepler’s is not hauling UPS, that they add 

an additional boat between the 8:00 am and 12:00 pm Island (7:30am & 11:30 am 

St. Ignace) departures  

• Ms. Dobrowolski agreed to run a 9:30 am Island departure through 

November 27th 

o Ms. Dobrowolski informed the Council & public that, if they are utilizing the parking lot 

behind the Driftwood, there will be a 10-day grace period after December 1st to remove 

vehicles out of that lot  

o Councilwoman Myers noted that both the Captain Shepler and the Wyandot have steps down 

in to lower level – what is the plan for handicap guests & the transporting of patients 

▪ Mr. Shepler noted that the aft decks on these vessels are enclosed, but there is no 

heat 

▪ Councilman Moskwa inquired about Shepler utilizing some of their newer boats that 

had even level access to avoid this issue  

• Mr. Shepler noted that they have some maintenance issues on those boats 

that need to be addressed. They also do not have the electrical infrastructure 

on the newer boats to keep the motor blocks warm during November 

weather 

o Councilwoman Myers suggested starting to look in to the transfer of Shepler’s to Arnold 

Transit tickets for those who previously bought larger amounts of commuter tickets and such  

o Secondary boat available for morning commuter overflow 

▪ Council members are concerned about the current morning commute capacity and 

how that will be handled going forward, especially with colder weather guests 

should not be expected to ride on the top level and be exposed to the weather  

• Ms. Dobrowolski noted that she has been researching and looking at 

numbers, and it is obvious that two (2) boats are needed for the 7:30 am 

departure. Plan is to always have another boat online to pick up overflow 

o Councilman Moskwa inquired about the freight boats Maverick & Senator  

▪ Ms. Dobrowolski is requesting to add these vessels to the Winter Service Agreement 

fleet - not advertising as passenger / scheduled boats, but would like to have them 

available if needed  

o Councilman St. Onge inquired if Arnold holds the Winter Service Agreement (which begins 

service November 1st) but Shepler's assets are being used - who do we call when there is an 

issue? 

 6

Section IV, Itema.



Pg. 4 of the October 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting  
 

Arnold Transit Cont. 

▪ Ms. Dobrowolski responded that since the Winter Service Aontract is with Arnold 

Transit, to please contact them rather than Shepler’s.  

o The Winter Service Agreement was recently assigned to the Mackinac Island Transportation 

Authority (MITA) for management with cavate that the City Council approves any changes 

▪ All deviations from what was assigned to MITA should be put in writing and 

presented for approval at the October 16th City Council meeting 

▪ Councilwoman Myers requested that all schedule changes discussed today need to 

be included in the amendment / deviation  

o Current capacity issue with the 7:30 am St. Ignace departure 

▪ City Council would like to see two (2) boats run for the 7:30 St. Ignace departure  

▪ Mr. Shepler noted that they do not have the appropriate staffing in St. Ignace to run 

two (2) 7:30 am departures 

• Mr. Shepler’s solution to the problem would be to take the 8:00 am St. 

Ignace departure off of the schedule to give the ability to run two (2) 7:30 

am departures out of St. Ignace – this would not disrupt the current schedule 

of departures from Mackinac Island  

Motion made by St. Onge, Seconded by Myers, to amend the Shepler’s St. Ignace schedule, beginning 

October 7th, to have two (2) 7:30 am departures / boats leaving St. Ignace to the Island, and for the 

Island departures to remain the same. 

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge  
 

− Discussion of 2025 Ferry Rates, Fees, & Schedules deadline 

o Deadline is firm at November 15, 2024 per the Franchise Agreement  
 

− Increased haul times for the Wastewater treatment project 

o Request that haul times be increased to 10:00 am (currently run 5:00 am to 8:00 am) 

o Have a large stockpile of rock that needs to be moved from the project to the airport pit 

▪ Would like to take two (2) days and haul from 10:00 pm to 6:00 am – some time 

Monday through Friday, not on the weekend 

▪ Extended time really allows for the vehicles to get back to the dock to leave the 

island / not holding them up from other projects  

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Moskwa, to allow the increase hauling time, Monday through 

Friday, from 5:00 am to 10:00 am, (originally 5:00 am to 8:00 am) 

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan 

o Two (2) days rock hauling  

o Need to consider the operations of the Stonecliffe and Woods shuttles - may need to 

push back to 11:00 pm or 12:00 am – would rather see it done in the (2) days than (6) 

days. Work with taxi stand on times the shuttles are coming out.  

o Need to make sure this is announced to the public – can work with the Clerk’s office 

and the Police Department  

Motion made by Moskwa, seconded by Sehoyan, to authorize the hauling of gravel on Monday 

October 7th and Tuesday October 8th from 10:00 pm to 6:00 am from the Wastewater Treatment Plant 

to the gravel pit at the east end of the airport 

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge  
 

− Architectural Solutions for Forest Way Townhomes Phase 3 

o Dennis Dombroski noted that this is the same service that was provided on Phases 1 & 2 

o They will be sending an additional contract for site visits 

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Corrigan, to approve the contract as presented.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 
 

− 2025 Forest Way Townhome Budget  

o Correction to be made - page 11, line 7208 - plumbing - amend from $10,000.00 to $2,000.00  

▪ KMG will send a new copy with the above amendment  

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Chambers, to adopt the 2025 Forest Way Townhome budget with the 

above-mentioned plumbing amendment. 

  Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 
7

Section IV, Itema.



Pg. 5 of the October 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting 
 

− 2025 Hanging Basket proposal - St. Ignace In Bloom 

o Councilwoman Myers noted that she would like to see definitive dates / time ranges for the baskets 

▪ Mayor’s Assistant Trista France will reach out to St. Ignace in Bloom to get the dates  

Motion made by Corrigan, Seconded by Chambers, to approve the proposal for the 2025 hanging 

baskets from St. Ignace in Bloom  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 
 

− Street Cut Permit, submitted by GFAK LLC, for a cut on 7th Street for the installation of a sprinkler system 

for the house located at 2827 Cadotte Ave.  

Motion made by  Moskwa, Seconded by  Sehoyan. 

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 
 

− Trailer permit, submitted by Advanced Inc., for awning cleaning and transportation at the Grand Hotel  

Motion made by St. Onge, Seconded by Myers, to approve the trailer permit.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 
 

− Six (6) trailer permits, submitted by Fettig’s Landscaping, to winterize sprinkler systems  

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Myers, to approve the trailer permits with the start date of October 

21, 2024.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 
 

− Three (3) quotes from Otis Elevator for Code Required Testing - CAT 1 Hydro Package (Community Hall, 

Stuart House, Courthouse) 

o Mr. Dombroski has concerns and questions regarding the City's liability if an Otis worker gets hurt 

while doing testing on City elevators 

o Attorney Evashevski is of the opinion that the City should not be liable for this  

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Corrigan, to table the three (3) Otis contracts for (2) weeks for 

further review by the City attorney. 

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge  
 

− (2) trailer & (1) vehicle permit for O’Boyle & Co. at the Forest Way Townhomes  

o Councilwoman Myers questioned if Mackinac Island Service Company was able to haul the trusses 

(proposed to be hauled by a vehicle) 

▪ Kyle O’Boyle stated that he has checked with the Service Company and they will not haul 

the trusses  

o Councilman Moskwa inquired if the trusses are being put in place or if they are just being brought 

to site? 

▪ Mr. O’Boyle noted that they are hoping to set them the middle of next week on the first 

duplex 

Motion made by Chambers, Seconded by St. Onge, to approve the trailer and vehicle permits and to waive  

the fees as this is work for the City.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 

 

− (3) vehicle permits, submitted by Belonga Excavating, to excavate a foundation for Andrew Doud at 1274 

Mission St. 

o Contingencies were set by the Planning Commission that have not yet been met 

▪ Approval of lot split – to be done by the Council  

▪ Withdrawal of the Special Land Use granted to the previous owner – can be done between 

applicant and attorney Evashevski  

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Corrigan, to table the permits for two weeks while the contingencies 

are met.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 

 

− (4) vehicle and (1) trailer permit, submitted by Belonga Excavating, to backfill and power trench at Hoban 

Hill – 2269 Cadotte Ave. Vehicles will arrive the week of October 14th and will be in use for (2) weeks.  

Motion made by St. Onge, Seconded by Sehoyan, to approve the vehicle and trailer permits for Belonga 

Excavating at Hoban Hill.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 
 

8

Section IV, Itema.



Pg. 6 of the October 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting 
 

− (3) vehicle permits, submitted by Belonga Excavating, to clean the corral and haul waste to landfill for 

Mike Young at 8143 Algonquin. Vehicles will arrive the week of November 4th and will be in use for (1) to 

(3) days.  

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Sehoyan, to approve the vehicle permits.   

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 
 

− (5) vehicle and (1) trailer permit, submitted by Belonga Excavating, to excavate the foundation for Harbour 

View housing at located at 7596 7th Street. Vehicles will arrive the week of October 14th and will be in use 

for (1) to (3) days.  

o Councilman Moskwa inquired what time of the day work will this start? 

▪ Chad Belonga responded that they planned to start around 8:00 am 

o Councilwoman Myers noted that Belonga should not be running on the weekends 

▪ Chad Belonga responded that they are not planning to work weekends for this project  

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Sehoyan, to approve the vehicle and trailer permits for Belonga 

Excavating at 7596 7th Street.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge  
 

− (2) trailer permits, submitted by Eric Bauer, for the storage of building material and snowmobiles 

o Cannot be visible from the street  

Would like the following information from Mr. Bauer - specific location, property owner name, what 

are building materials being used for (interior work, new building)  

Motion made by St. Onge, Seconded by Moskwa, to table the permits for two weeks for further information.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge  
 

− (3) vehicle and (4) trailer permits, submitted by Action Service Construction, for the construction of 

workforce housing for the Harbour View Inn at 7596 7th Street 

o Council questioned if the sewer agreement for the use of the Grand Hotel’s sewer line was in place 

▪ Dave Jurcak of the Grand Hotel responded that the agreement was not yet in place, but he 

is working with Sam to get things together  

▪ Attorney Evashevski commented that, last she knew, the revised agreement had been sent 

to the Grand for their review  

▪ Mr. Jurcak noted that the letter for approval of the connection will be issued prior to the 

October 14th start date of the permits applied for 

▪ Attorney Evashevski commented that it would be best to wait until there is a signed 

agreement as it has been in discussion for a while 

table vehicles for 2 weeks to get letter from Grand to Sam  

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Moskwa - to approve the (4) trailer permits but to hold the (3) 

vehicle permits until the October 16th meeting and the presentation of the signed agreement.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 
 

− (4) vehicle and (4) trailer permit, submitted by Action Service Construction, for the construction of 

emergency stairs and site repairs for the Harbour View Inn at 6876 Main Street. Vehicles will arrive on 

November 1st and will be in use until May 2025.  

o Dennis Dombroski commented that building permits have not been issued yet, just got final 

construction drawings this week, but has been approved by the Historic District Commission and 

the Planning Commission   

o Belonga Excavation will stage on site, lift will be on Bogan Lane for roof access 

▪ Will work with neighbors 

▪ For the dumpsters - need to work with Fire Department for staging area, will do 

walkthrough  

▪ Cement truck will only be on site (1) to (3) days  

Motion made by Sehoyan, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the vehicle and trailer permits.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 
 

− Vehicle permit, submitted by Mackinac Island Fire Department, for Premier Safety to complete annual air 

pack testing at Fire Stations 1 & 2. Van will arrive on October 14th and will be in use for (1) day.  

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Sehoyan, to approve the permit and waive the fee. 

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 

 
9

Section IV, Itema.



Pg. 7 of the October 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting 
 

− Vehicle permit, submitted by Cloverland Electric, for dielectric testing of their utility trucks. Truck will 

arrive on October 8th and will be in use for one (1) day.  

Motion made by Sehoyan, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the permit.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 

 

− Off-Island Business License Application submitted by Up North Stone Masonry  

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Chambers, to approve the business license application. 

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 

 

− (3) vehicle permits, submitted by Belonga Excavating, for the installation of a sprinkler line and to 

excavate for new fire escape foundation at the Harbour View Inn, located at 6860 Main St. Vehicles will 

arrive the week of November 4th and will be in use for (2) to (3) days.  

Motion made by St. Onge, Seconded by Moskwa, to approve the vehicle permits.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 

 

− Vehicle permit, submitted by UP North Construction, for a Skytrack at the Gromley lot in Stonebrook  

o Materials are currently stored on the Coal Dock and would like to get them to the job site   

▪ Would like to use the sky track for a day or two to unload materials  

▪ Sky track would come to the British Landing dock and move to site at Stonebrook - would 

move early or late, whenever most convenient  

o Willing to approve the start date of October 14th through November 1st. Permit needs to be 

resubmitted every 30 days after November 1st  

Motion by made by Myers, seconded by Moskwa, to approve the permit from October 14th through 

November 1st, with the application being resubmitted every 30 days for approval.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 

 

Motion made by  Myers, Seconded by  Moskwa, to enter in to closed session at 5:45 pm to discuss a 

written attorney opinion regarding electric bikes. 

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan 

 

Motion made by Myers, Seconded by Moskwa, to leave closed session at 6:54 pm.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 

  

Motion made by Moskwa, Seconded by Corrigan, to enter in to open session at 6:55 pm.  

Voting Yea:  Chambers,  Corrigan,  Moskwa,  Myers,  Sehoyan, St. Onge 

 

XII. Miscellaneous / General Council Discussion / Additional Agenda Items 

 

XIII. Adjournment 

 

There being no further business, motion made by Myers, seconded by Chambers, to adjourn the meeting at 

6:55 pm.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________   ____________________________________ 

Margaret M. Doud, Mayor     Danielle Leach, City Clerk  

 

10

Section IV, Itema.



11

Section V, Itema.



12

Section V, Itema.



CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND ACCOUNTS PAYABLES

OCTOBER 16, 2024

PAYROLL 09.29.2024 - 10.12.2024 (Pay Date: 10.17.2024) $61,623.96

NORTHERN APPRAISAL 09.29.2024 - 10.12.2024 (Pay Date: 10.17.2024) $1,046.01

ACRISURE CITY HEALTH INSURANCE $338.40

ADKINSON, NEED, ALLEN, & RENTROP HDC SERVICES THROUGH 9.25.2024 $180.00

APT TECHNOLOGIES COUNCIL / HDC / PLANNING IT - SEPT. 2024 $550.00

BAREFOOT IN THE STONE GARDEN FOR SERVICES DURING SEPTEMBER 2024 $1,190.00

BECKY MILLER DANCE INSTRUCTOR $180.00

CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND HRA REIMBURSEMENTS $2,012.18

COMPLETE PAINT & SUPPLIES SHOP SUPPLIES $301.40

DANIELLE LEACH REIMBURSEMENT FOR DANCE COSTUME (REC DEPT) $39.85

DOUD'S MARKET CITY ACCOUNT CHARGES $141.21

DPW CITY WATER BILLS $1,363.95

ELECTION SOURCE NOVEMBER 2024 ELECTION SUPPLIES $498.96

EMPIRIC SOLUTIONS CITY & MIPD NOVEMBER 2024 IT SERVICES $1,679.00

GRAND HOTEL STREET SWEEPING (09.01.24 - 09.30.24 - 577 HRS) $11,545.14

INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES LIBRARY PURCHASES $171.80

KSS PUBLIC RESTROOM SUPPLIES $2,090.70

LANSING UNIFORM COMPANY MIPD UNIFORMS $609.50

LEXIS NEXIS MIPD CONTRACTED SERVICES $260.00

M.I. SERVICE CO. OCTOBER STREETS & TRASH COLLECTION $12,961.68

.

MACKINAC WHEELS MIPD BIKE REPAIRS $402.90

MARY PATAY REIMBURSEMENT FOR PROGRAM EXPENSES $462.54

MCMASTER-CARR SHOP & HOLIDAY SUPPLIES / STREETS $920.17

PRO-TECH SALES MIPD UNIFORMS & EQUIPMENT (TASERS) $11,709.00

OLIVER KNUTSON CONTRIBUTION TO REAL MADRID SOCCER CLINIC $1,000.00

OLSTYZN HANCOCK CONTRIBUTION TO REAL MADRID SOCCER CLINIC $1,000.00

QUADIENT FINANCE USA CITY HALL POTAGE $400.00

13

Section VI, Itema.



CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND ACCOUNTS PAYABLES

OCTOBER 16, 2024

REHMANN SEPTEMBER 2024 SERVICES $3,075.00

ROMAN GRUITS CONTRIBUTION TO REAL MADRID SOCCER CLINIC $1,000.00

SUZE OOSTENDORP EXERCISE CLASSES $720.00

TOTAL $119,473.35

14

Section VI, Itema.



Payroll October 17, 2024

Employee Rate of Pay Reg. OT Gross Wage

Alexander, Douglas $14.50 32.5 $471.25

Bagbey, Gwendolyn $1,552.00 1 $1,552.00

Bradford, Justin $32.37 84 2.75 84 $2,894.61

Bradford, Justin (On Call) $16.18 0 $0.00

Bradford, Justin (Field Training Offier) $60.00 0 $0.00

Bradley, Dennis $20.82 48 $999.36

Cowell, Ella $18.10 80 $1,448.00

Davis, Joseph $28.38 84 2 84 $2,511.06

Dombroski, Dennis $61.16 70 $4,281.20

Doud, Margaret  $382.00 0 $0.00

Dziobak, Andrew $32.37 84 $2,719.08

Dziobak, Andrew (On Call) $16.18 0 $0.00

France, Trista $2,254.46 1 $2,254.46

Gruits, Michael $3,820.74 1 $3,820.74

Kaminen, Cory $30.83 84 4 84 $2,816.70

Kaminen, Cory (On Call) $15.42 0 $0.00

Kaminen, Cory (Field Training Offier) $72.00 0 $0.00

Kuemin, Kassandra $26.52 84 $2,227.68

Leach, Danielle $1,884.35 1 $1,884.35

Linn, Richard $1,884.35 1 $1,884.35

Lipovsky, Dave $55.00 60.5 $3,327.50

Miedzianowski, Dwayne $30.83 84 2 $2,682.21

Miedzianowski, Dwayne (FTO) $48.00 0 $0.00

Patay, Mary $1,840.34 1 $1,840.34

Pereny, Kathryn $23.78 56.75 $1,349.52

Rollins, Christine $23.00 23 $529.00

Ross, Christian $21.46 72 $1,545.12

Ruddle, Mike $29.90 80 31 $3,782.35

Saleem, Hamza $22.82 84 7 84 $2,198.49

Saul, Mary $15.90 30.5 $484.95

Schmidt, Jacob $17.50 80 $1,400.00

Simmons, Alison $15.90 30.5 $484.95

St. Onge, Anne L. $23.02 77.5 $1,784.05

Stafford, Audrey $15.34 30 $460.20

Stakoe, Joseph $1,046.01 1 $1,046.01

Wischmeyer, McKenna $14.50 30 $435.00

TOTAL $55,114.52

Prime 

Reg/OT 

(.50) Hldy
Vaca / 

Personl

15

Section VI, Itemb.



Employee Earnings

Payroll period: 09/29/2024 - 10/12/2024 Pay day: 10/17/2024

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

Alexander, Douglas
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 32.50 $14.50 $471.25 Social Security $29.22 Social Security $29.22 Net Pay $435.20

Police Department Gross -- -- $471.25 Medicare $6.83 Medicare $6.83
Check
Amount

$435.20

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Total $36.05
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$22.15
Employer
Cost

$529.45

Total $58.20

Bageby, Gwendolyn
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $19.40 $1,552.00
Federal Income
Tax

$169.62 Social Security $96.22 Net Pay $1,197.69

Public Works Gross -- -- $1,552.00 Social Security $96.22 Medicare $22.51
Check
Amount

$1,197.69

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $22.51 Total $118.73
Employer
Cost

$1,670.73

MI State Tax $65.96

Total $354.31

Bradford, Justin
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $32.37 $2,719.08 457 Retirement $50.00 $407.38
Federal Income
Tax

$188.71 Social Security $179.45 Net Pay $1,961.38

Police Department Overtime 2.75 $49.01 $134.77 Rent $334.62 Social Security $179.45 Medicare $41.96
Check
Amount

$1,961.38

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Night Shift
premium

-- -- $40.50 POLC dues $26.50 Medicare $41.96 Total $221.41
Employer
Cost

$3,523.14

Rent -- -- $0.00 MI State Tax $111.73

POLC dues -- -- $0.00 Total $521.85

Gross -- -- $2,894.35

Bradley, Dennis
Paid by the
hour

Check Regular 48.00 $20.82 $999.36
Federal Income
Tax

$15.71 Social Security $61.96 Net Pay $864.73

Cemetery Gross -- -- $999.36 Social Security $61.96 Medicare $14.49
Check
Amount

$864.73

Report generated by

 
+

 

Payroll Journal Report
Payroll Period: 09/29/2024 - 10/12/2024
Report Created On: 10/15/2024

City of Mackinac Island
7358 Market St.
P.O. Box 455
Mackinac Island, MI 49757

1/8
16

Section VI, Itemb.



7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $14.49 Total $76.45
Employer
Cost

$1,075.81

MI State Tax $42.47

Total $134.63

Cowell, Ella
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $18.10 $1,448.00
Federal Income
Tax

$97.45 Social Security $89.78 Net Pay $1,178.24

Public Works Gross -- -- $1,448.00 Social Security $89.78 Medicare $20.99
Check
Amount

$1,178.24

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $20.99 Total $110.77
Employer
Cost

$1,558.77

MI State Tax $61.54

Total $269.76

Davis, Joseph
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $28.38 $2,383.92
457 Roth
Retirement

$300.00 $314.59
Federal Income
Tax

$238.73 Social Security $155.72 Net Pay $1,162.80

Police Department Overtime 2.00 $42.81 $85.62 Rent $484.62 Social Security $155.72 Medicare $36.42
Check
Amount

$1,162.80

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Night Shift
premium

-- -- $42.00 POLC dues $26.50 Medicare $36.42 Total $192.14
Employer
Cost

$3,018.27

Rent -- -- $0.00 MI State Tax $106.75

POLC dues -- -- $0.00 Total $537.62

Gross -- -- $2,511.54

Dombroski, Dennis
Paid by the
hour

Check Regular 70.00 $61.16 $4,281.20 457 Retirement $250.00 $150.00
Federal Income
Tax

$436.64 Social Security $263.35 Net Pay $3,066.12

Engineering Gross -- -- $4,281.20 Aflac Pre Tax $33.60 Social Security $263.35 Medicare $61.59
Check
Amount

$3,066.12

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $61.59 Total $324.94
Employer
Cost

$4,756.14

MI State Tax $169.90

Total $931.48

Doud, Margaret
Salary/Eligible
for overtime

Check Gross -- -- $0.00 Total $0.00 Total $0.00

Mayor

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Dziobak, Andrew
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $32.37 $2,719.08 457 Retirement $200.00 $353.48
Federal Income
Tax

$268.37 Social Security $166.21 Net Pay $1,844.32

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

2/8
17

Section VI, Itemb.



Police Department POLC dues -- -- $0.00 POLC dues $26.50 Social Security $166.21 Medicare $38.87
Check
Amount

$1,844.32

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Aflac After Tax -- -- $0.00 Aflac Pre Tax $38.22 Medicare $38.87 Total $205.08
Employer
Cost

$3,277.64

Gross -- -- $2,719.08 Aflac After Tax $40.31 MI State Tax $96.28

Total $569.73

France, Trista
Salary/No
overtime

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $28.18 $2,254.46 457 Retirement $10.00
Federal Income
Tax

$214.40 Social Security $137.90 Net Pay $1,710.58

Mayor's assistant Gross -- -- $2,254.46 Aflac Pre Tax $30.22 Social Security $137.90 Medicare $32.25
Check
Amount

$1,710.58

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $32.25 Total $170.15
Employer
Cost

$2,424.61

MI State Tax $119.11

Total $503.66

Gruits, Michael
Salary/No
overtime

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $42.74 $3,589.99 457 Retirement $62.50 $559.20
Federal Income
Tax

$513.01 Social Security $236.89 Net Pay $2,793.21

Police Department Rent -- -- $230.75 Social Security $236.89 Medicare $55.40
Check
Amount

$2,793.21

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Gross -- -- $3,820.74 Medicare $55.40 Total $292.29
Employer
Cost

$4,672.23

MI State Tax $159.73

Total $965.03

Kaminen, Cory
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $30.83 $2,589.72 457 Retirement $45.00 $399.15
Federal Income
Tax

$197.67 Social Security $173.51 Net Pay $2,216.61

Police Department Overtime 4.00 $46.47 $185.89 POLC dues $26.50 Social Security $173.51 Medicare $40.58
Check
Amount

$2,216.61

7342 Market St,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Night Shift
premium

-- -- $42.00 Aflac Pre Tax $19.02 Medicare $40.58 Total $214.09
Employer
Cost

$3,430.85

POLC dues -- -- $0.00 MI State Tax $98.72

Gross -- -- $2,817.61 Total $510.48

Kuemin, Kassandra
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $26.52 $2,227.68 Rent $150.00
Federal Income
Tax

$153.51 Social Security $138.11 Net Pay $1,595.57

Police Department Rent -- -- $0.00 POLC dues $26.50 Social Security $138.11 Medicare $32.30
Check
Amount

$1,595.57

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

POLC dues -- -- $0.00
Child support -
913323494
(Garnishment)

$37.01 Medicare $32.30 Total $170.41
Employer
Cost

$2,398.09

Gross -- -- $2,227.68 MI State Tax $94.68

Total $418.60

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

3/8
18

Section VI, Itemb.



Leach, Danielle
Salary/No
overtime

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $23.55 $1,884.35 457 Retirement $50.00
Federal Income
Tax

$163.04 Social Security $116.43 Net Pay $1,087.39

City Clerk's Office Rent -- -- $0.00 Rent $346.15 Social Security $116.43 Medicare $27.23
Check
Amount

$1,087.39

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Gross -- -- $1,884.35 Aflac Pre Tax $6.42 Medicare $27.23 Total $143.66
Employer
Cost

$2,028.01

MI State Tax $87.69

Total $394.39

Linn, Richard
Salary/No
overtime

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $23.55 $1,884.35
457 Roth
Retirement

$1,250.00
Federal Income
Tax

$169.66 Social Security $116.83 Net Pay $249.61

City Treasurer Gross -- -- $1,884.35 Social Security $116.83 Medicare $27.32
Check
Amount

$249.61

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $27.32 Total $144.15
Employer
Cost

$2,028.50

MI State Tax $70.93

Total $384.74

Lipovsky II, David
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 60.50 $55.00 $3,327.50
Federal Income
Tax

$246.68 Social Security $206.30 Net Pay $2,684.85

Engineering Gross -- -- $3,327.50 Social Security $206.30 Medicare $48.25
Check
Amount

$2,684.85

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $48.25 Total $254.55
Employer
Cost

$3,582.05

MI State Tax $141.42

Total $642.65

Miedzianowski,
Dwayne

Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $30.83 $2,589.72 Rent $150.00
Federal Income
Tax

$266.35 Social Security $163.50 Net Pay $1,823.28

Police Department Overtime 2.00 $46.25 $92.49 POLC dues $26.50 Social Security $163.50 Medicare $38.23
Check
Amount

$1,823.28

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Rent -- -- $0.00 Aflac Pre Tax $45.15 Medicare $38.23 Total $201.73
Employer
Cost

$2,883.94

POLC dues -- -- $0.00 Aflac After Tax $57.12 MI State Tax $112.08

Aflac After Tax -- -- $0.00 Total $580.16

Gross -- -- $2,682.21

Patay, Mary
Salary/No
overtime

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $23.00 $1,840.34 457 Retirement $70.00
Federal Income
Tax

$168.86 Social Security $110.50 Net Pay $1,323.77

Recreation
department

Aflac After Tax -- -- $0.00 Aflac Pre Tax $58.04 Social Security $110.50 Medicare $25.84
Check
Amount

$1,323.77

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

4/8
19

Section VI, Itemb.



7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Gross -- -- $1,840.34 Aflac After Tax $10.56 Medicare $25.84 Total $136.34
Employer
Cost

$1,976.68

MI State Tax $72.77

Total $377.97

Pereny, Kathryn
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 56.75 $23.78 $1,349.52
Federal Income
Tax

$72.26 Social Security $83.67 Net Pay $1,116.67

Engineering Gross -- -- $1,349.52 Social Security $83.67 Medicare $19.57
Check
Amount

$1,116.67

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $19.57 Total $103.24
Employer
Cost

$1,452.76

MI State Tax $57.35

Total $232.85

Rollins, Christine
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 23.00 $23.00 $529.00 Social Security $32.80 Social Security $32.80 Net Pay $466.05

City Clerk's Office Gross -- -- $529.00 Medicare $7.67 Medicare $7.67
Check
Amount

$466.05

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

MI State Tax $22.48 Total $40.47
Employer
Cost

$569.47

Total $62.95

Ross, Christian
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 72.00 $21.46 $1,545.12
Federal Income
Tax

$109.11 Social Security $95.80 Net Pay $1,252.13

Public Works Gross -- -- $1,545.12 Social Security $95.80 Medicare $22.41
Check
Amount

$1,252.13

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $22.41 Total $118.21
Employer
Cost

$1,663.33

MI State Tax $65.67

Total $292.99

Ruddle, Michael
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $29.90 $2,392.00
Federal Income
Tax

$554.69 Social Security $234.51 Net Pay $2,786.70

Public Works Overtime 31.00 $44.85 $1,390.35 Social Security $234.51 Medicare $54.85
Check
Amount

$2,786.70

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Gross -- -- $3,782.35 Medicare $54.85 Total $289.36
Employer
Cost

$4,071.71

MI State Tax $151.60

Total $995.65

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

5/8
20

Section VI, Itemb.



Saleem, Hamza
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 84.00 $22.82 $1,916.88 Rent $150.00
Federal Income
Tax

$187.69 Social Security $136.40 Net Pay $1,574.00

Police Department Overtime 7.00 $34.44 $241.11 POLC dues $26.50 Social Security $136.40 Medicare $31.90
Check
Amount

$1,574.00

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Night Shift
premium

-- -- $42.00 Medicare $31.90 Total $168.30
Employer
Cost

$2,368.29

Rent -- -- $0.00 MI State Tax $93.50

POLC dues -- -- $0.00 Total $449.49

Gross -- -- $2,199.99

Saul, Mary
Paid by the
hour

Check Regular 30.50 $15.90 $484.95
Federal Income
Tax

$20.00 Social Security $30.07 Net Pay $387.24

Stuart House Gross -- -- $484.95 Social Security $30.07 Medicare $7.03
Check
Amount

$387.24

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $7.03
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$22.79
Employer
Cost

$544.84

MI State Tax $40.61 Total $59.89

Total $97.71

Schmidt, Jacob
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $17.50 $1,400.00
Federal Income
Tax

$91.69 Social Security $86.80 Net Pay $1,141.71

Public Works Gross -- -- $1,400.00 Social Security $86.80 Medicare $20.30
Check
Amount

$1,141.71

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $20.30 Total $107.10
Employer
Cost

$1,507.10

MI State Tax $59.50

Total $258.29

Simmons, Alison
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 30.50 $15.90 $484.95 Social Security $30.06 Social Security $30.06 Net Pay $436.40

Stuart House Gross -- -- $484.95 Medicare $7.03 Medicare $7.03
Check
Amount

$436.40

7342 Market St,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

MI State Tax $11.46
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$22.79
Employer
Cost

$544.83

Total $48.55 Total $59.88

Smoot, Virginia
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Gross -- -- $0.00 Total $0.00 Total $0.00

Stuart House

7342 Market St,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

6/8
21

Section VI, Itemb.



St. Onge, Anne
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 77.50 $23.02 $1,784.05 457 Retirement $25.00
Federal Income
Tax

$168.26 Social Security $107.41 Net Pay $1,333.98

Library Gross -- -- $1,784.05 Aflac Pre Tax $51.72 Social Security $107.41 Medicare $25.12
Check
Amount

$1,333.98

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $25.12 Total $132.53
Employer
Cost

$1,916.58

MI State Tax $72.56

Total $373.35

Stafford, Audrey
Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 30.00 $15.34 $460.20
Federal Income
Tax

$5.00 Social Security $28.53 Net Pay $400.44

Library Gross -- -- $460.20 Social Security $28.53 Medicare $6.67
Check
Amount

$400.44

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $6.67 Total $35.20
Employer
Cost

$495.40

MI State Tax $19.56

Total $59.76

Stakoe, Joseph
Salary/Eligible
for overtime

Direct Deposit Regular 80.00 $13.08 $1,046.02
Federal Income
Tax

$49.21 Social Security $64.85 Net Pay $872.33

City Assessor Gross -- -- $1,046.02 Social Security $64.85 Medicare $15.17
Check
Amount

$872.33

7358 Market St.,
P.O. Box 455,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

Medicare $15.17 Total $80.02
Employer
Cost

$1,126.04

MI State Tax $44.46

Total $173.69

Wischmeyer,
Mckenna

Paid by the
hour

Direct Deposit Regular 30.00 $14.50 $435.00 Social Security $26.97 Social Security $26.97 Net Pay $383.23

Police Department Gross -- -- $435.00 Medicare $6.31 Medicare $6.31
Check
Amount

$383.23

7374 Market St.,
Mackinac Island, MI
49757

MI State Tax $18.49
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$20.45
Employer
Cost

$488.73

Total $51.77 Total $53.73

Payroll Totals Regular 1953.25 $26.92 $52,589.69 457 Retirement $762.50 $1,869.21
Federal Income
Tax

$4,766.32 Social Security $3,399.75 Net Pay $39,346.23

Overtime 48.75 $43.70 $2,130.23 Rent $1,615.39 Social Security $3,399.75 Medicare $795.09
Check
Amount

$39,346.23

Night Shift
premium

-- -- $166.50 POLC dues $185.50 Medicare $795.09
MI State
Unemployment
Tax

$88.18
Employer
Cost

$61,583.99

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

7/8
22

Section VI, Itemb.



Rent -- -- $230.75
457 Roth
Retirement

$1,550.00 $314.59 MI State Tax $2,269.00 Total $4,283.02

Rent -- -- $0.00 Aflac Pre Tax $282.39 Total $11,230.16

POLC dues -- -- $0.00 Aflac After Tax $107.99

Aflac After Tax -- -- $0.00
Child support -
913323494
(Garnishment)

$37.01

Gross -- -- $55,117.17

Employee
Information Employment Earnings Deductions/Contributions Employee Taxes Employer Taxes Totals

Employee
Type Payment Description Hours Rate Total Description Employee

Deduction
Employer
Contribution Description Amount Description Amount Descriptio

n Amount

8/8
23

Section VI, Itemb.



 
 

A T T O R N E Y S  &  C O U N S E L O R S  A T  L A W  
 

406 Bay Street, Suite 300 • Petoskey, MI 49770 • T: (231) 347-1200 • F:  248-901-4040• plunkettcooney.com 

 

 

October 3, 2024 

 
Via Email:  kep@cityofmi.org  
 
City of Mackinac Island Planning Commission 
Attn:  Katie Pereny, Secretary    
7358 Market Street 
P.O. Box 455 
Mackinac Island, MI 49757 
 
 Re: Draft Master Plan 
 
Dear Ms. Pereny: 
 
The purpose of this correspondence is to take advantage of the City of Mackinac Island’s 
suggestion that “stakeholders provide collaboration in the development decisions” of the 
City’s Master Plan.  The concerns and suggestions listed below represent the position of key 
stakeholders, including the Grand Hotel, Mission Point, Chippewa Properties, The Island 
House and Ryba businesses, Doud’s, and Mackinac Island Carriage Tours. While not part of 
the Master Plan committee, this group remains motivated to support the City of Mackinac 
Island now and well into the future.   
 
We appreciate all the time and energy the Master Plan Committee devoted to this important 
project.  Fortunately, the Michigan Planning Enabling Act only requires an update every ϐive 
years.  We are also mindful that the goals of this policy document create a tough balancing 
act.  Speciϐically, that “supporting a thriving economy” may be at odds with the “challenges of 
development” and “preserving the Island’s culture and history”.   Maybe the words in the draft 
say it best: we need to “strike a balance between historic preservation and economic 
development, resulting in a win-win for both”.  
 
Of concern is the fact that the City will most likely rely on this Master Plan to implement 
signiϐicant zoning changes. This Master Plan proposes nine (9) zoning classiϐications some 
of which are new. There is also a suggestion to change the zoning map to alter boundaries.  
Between the changed deϐinitions within existing classiϐications, change in boundaries and 
the new classiϐications, there may be some unintended consequences that adversely affect 
the owners in those areas.  For example: 
 

 Seeking a change in land zoned HB, but no explanation of what the excluded land 
will become, and why.  Without a rational basis for doing so, it seems better to strike 
this until better deϐined. 
 

 Seeking to expand the Shoreline Residential district without further clariϐication  
may lead to confusion. For now, it seems better to strike it until it is better deϐined.  
 

24

Section IX, Itema.



City of Mackinac Island 
October 3, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

 Changing the Commercial district to encourage residential use downtown.  In 
reality, this may actually have the opposite effect whereby it will encourage more 
condominium development.  Given that employee housing is the least economically 
viable use of commercial buildings we suggest this be removed from the Master 
Plan. 
 

 Requiring new hotels to provide on-site housing for employees does not appear to 
be supported by any rational basis, nor does it balance the rights of owners. Again, 
we ask it to be removed from the draft. 
 

 A reduction in HB seems to imply that properties currently used for hotel/boarding 
will become non-conforming.  Again, for many parcels this may not make much 
sense given their historic uses.  There was no rational basis included in the Master 
Plan to make sense as to what is driving this change. 

 
All stakeholders, like the City, should be able to rely on a Master Plan for long term ϐinancial 
planning.  It is extremely important, therefore, to clearly deϐine what all interested parties 
should reasonably expect for the near future.  This draft does not always provide the basis 
for its recommendations.  For example, what is the basis to reduce future zoning 
classiϐications down from eleven (11) categories to nine (9) other than a desire for less 
economic development? 
 
We believe this Master Plan seems to focus more on the “use” of property (and a desire to 
regulate use) rather than the “form” of structures.  We are uncertain whether the 
committee or its consultants considered the concept of “form-based zoning”.  Attached is a 
good article written by the Michigan Municipal League (MML) describing the beneϐits of 
form-based zoning.  In short, a more modern approach is for a city to address the “physical 
form” of buildings as its primary concern and the use of a structure as a secondary concern.  
The Master Plan as proposed seems to take just the opposite approach.   For example, 
encouraging residential use in a commercial district, and requiring on-site housing, is 
completely contrary to form-based zoning. 
 
The concept of form-based zoning is particularly relevant to the City of Mackinac Island.  
Because of its historical designation one would think that the “form” of a historic building 
would be the primary concern and what is inside merely a secondary concern.   
 
In conclusion, we ask the City, and its Planning Commission, to put a short “hold” on 
adoption of this draft in order for the City  to consider the opinions and recommendations 
outlined above.  This request seems consistent with the Master Plan committee’s 
acknowledgment that the Master Plan, “must be supportive of the major anchors.”  These 
major anchors, and other property owners, believe they need further opportunity to 
participate in this extremely important process. 
 
 

25

Section IX, Itema.



City of Mackinac Island 
October 3, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 
Please provide a copy of this correspondence to the Planning Commission for their next 
meeting (October 8) as I understand this issue will be on the Agenda.  By copy to the City 
Clerk, we also ask that the City Council also be furnished with a copy. 
 
      Very truly yours, 

 
      James J. Murray 
      Plunkett Cooney 
      Direct Dial 231-348-6413 
 
JJM/tfp 
cc: Danielle Leach  clerk@cityofmi.org  
 
Open.26949.81298.35259503-1 

26

Section IX, Itema.



WWW.PLANNINGMI.ORG 

M I C H I G A N  A S S O C I A T I O N  O F  P L A N N I N G — M A K I N G  G R E A T  P L A C E S  H A P P E N

 Issue Number 28:
 Form-based Codes

A Chapter of the American Planning Association

FORM-BASED CODES 
AN EFFECTIVE TOOL 
FOR SMART GROWTH
As part of Smart Growth 
strategies, communities are 
examining development 
regulations to determine 
the extent to which the 
existing regulations may 
be posing an obstacle to 
Smart Growth. A great 
deal of attention is paid 
towards how development 
regulations have shaped 
our communities.  
An evaluation of 
development trends and 
the zoning requirements 
of many communities 
identified serious 
problems associated with uncontrolled 
urban sprawl and the loss of community 
character in suburban communities. In 
many instances, conventional zoning 
regulations are the major contributors 
towards creating the sprawling, 
automobile-oriented environment that 
dominates many Michigan communities.  

Zoning was created in the early 20th 
century as a response to problems 
associated with overcrowding in 
central cities and the intrusion of heavy 
industry into retail and residential areas. 
Developed in the later years of the 
industrial revolution, zoning sought 

to address these problems through 
separating incompatible uses and 
limiting residential density. However, 
the evolution of zoning in concert with 
rapid suburbanization has had the effect 
of dispersing suburban development over 
large areas of land and creating a host 
of problems such as loss of farmland, 
increased environmental impacts, greater 
auto-dependency, inefficient provision 
of public services, and loss of community 
character within the suburbs. While there 
is a resurgence of interest in older, more 
traditional urban communities, existing 
zoning regulations make redevelopment 
of urban communities more difficult 
by applying suburban zoning standards. 

Form-based codes –
new approach to zoning

Communities such as Grand Rapids are using form-based 
codes to document the urban fabric of their community 
and develop regulations that ensure that the most 
valuable qualities of the community are not only retained, 
but that new development fits into the character of the 
neighborhood, as well.

RELIANCE ON DESIGN 
CONCEPTS AND 
PATTERNS TO PRESERVE 
COMMUNITIES

The Michigan Land Use Leadership Council (MLULC) 
recognizes the importance of training, education, and 
knowledge as the means and methods of managing 
land use change and community development.  

The MLULC’s 2003 final report includes 
recommendations for planning and development 
regulation and encourages a public education 
campaign that includes concepts to help citizens 
better understand the implications of the continuation 
of land use trends and the benefits of better planned 
development in general. Additionally, it includes 
the specific benefits of alternative design schemes 
that focus on density rather than minimum lot sizes 
including: density-based zoning, new urbanism, and 
diverse socio-economic development patterns.

In an effort to continue the momentum and application 
of the MLULC’s recommendations, this issue of 
Smart Growth Tactics focuses on form-based codes 
(an outgrowth of new urbanism). A form-based code 
is a land development regulatory tool that places 
primary emphasis on the physical form of the built 
environment with the end goal of producing a specific 
type of “place.” The base principle of form-based 
coding is that design is more important than use.  
Where conventional zoning controls land use and 
focuses on separating land uses, form-based coding 
focuses on form as it relates to streetscape and 
adjacent uses.

This issue will provide: an overview of the principles 
associated with form-based codes; a discussion on 
the differences between conventional zoning and 
form-based codes; and introduce the structure of 
form-based codes and the process to developing 
form-based codes. The article will additionally provide 
examples of Michigan communities utilizing form-
based codes and the potential pitfalls associated with 
their use.

MAPDEC2006.indd   7 1/16/2007   2:30:57 PM

27

Section IX, Itema.



M I C H I G A N  A S S O C I A T I O N   O F  P L A N N I N G — M A K I N G  G R E A T  P L A C E S  H A P P E N2

Larger setbacks and excessive 
parking requirements make many 
cherished urban buildings and spaces 
nonconforming.

Form-based codes focus land use 
regulation towards creating more 
livable communities. The approach 
uses traditional community character 
to create and maintain a more human-
scale environment. Unlike conventional 
zoning that focuses on separating land 
uses, form-based code focuses on 
building form as it relates to streetscape 
and adjacent uses. Form-based codes 
allow for a mixture of land uses based 
upon the context of building form. As a 
result, compatibility of uses is achieved 
through design and orientation, instead 
of strict land use separation. Where 
conventional zoning focuses on use 
and development of an individual lot, 
form-based codes focus on the role that 
individual buildings serve in shaping 
the public streetscape. Form-based 
codes rely on design concepts and 
patterns intended to preserve the assets 
of a community, creating more livable 
environments and spaces.

PROBLEMS WITH EUCLIDEAN 
ZONING
The conventional form of zoning 
currently used throughout Michigan 
and the United States is what is 
commonly referred to as Euclidean 

zoning. This name is derived from 
the 1926 United States Supreme 
Court decision in Euclid v. Ambler 
Realty Co. (272 U.S. 365) to uphold 
the constitutional validity of zoning. 
Euclidean zoning has been in place in 
Michigan since 1921 with the City and 
Village Zoning Act, Public Act 207 of 
1921. Enabling legislation for townships 
and counties soon followed in 1943.

When the city of Detroit adopted its 
first zoning ordinance in 1920, the city 
sought to address different problems 
than those of today. In 1920, over-
crowded tenement housing and the 
intrusion of heavy industrial uses into 
commercial and light industrial areas 
created serious public health and welfare 
problems. These problems are at the 
root of land use separation and density 
limits which are the core of virtually all 
zoning ordinances today.

Michigan communities have 
experienced many changes over 
the past 80 years. With this, a new 
set of challenges in how to regulate 
development resurrects. Instead of 
concerns with overcrowding in cities, 
the focus is now on the negative 
impacts that uncontrolled sprawl has on 
the landscape of Michigan. And while 
the need to separate housing from heavy 
industry is still a valid concern, planners 
are now concerned with use-segregated 

suburbs, where it is not possible to walk 
to the corner store or for children to 
walk to school.  

The New Urbanism movement (1980 
to present) has attracted a great deal of 
interest in re-creating walkable, mixed-
use neighborhoods. As an outgrowth 
of this movement, form-based codes 
are the latest technique to re-examine 
the underlying zoning principle of 
separating uses and instead provide 
new means to develop vibrant mix-use 
communities. This is accomplished by 
placing a strong focus on the creation of 
proper urban form, wherein a mixture 
of uses can flourish.

DESIGN STANDARDS AND OTHER 
ATTEMPTS TO IMPROVE LAND 
USE REGULATION
In response to the limitation of 
Euclidean zoning, a number of zoning 
techniques have been created with 
varied levels of success. These include 
mixed-use planned unit developments, 
cluster development, performance 
zoning, and design standards.

Planned unit developments (PUD) have 
been used for many years as an effective 
means of developing coordinated larger 
sites. (The first evidence of a PUD 
was created in 1949 in Prince Georges 
County, Maryland.) However, in many 
instances, what is intended to be a 
“mixed-use” development actually ends 
up being “multiple-use,” where there 
are separate and distinct areas of land 
uses that are not truly integrated into 
a mixed-use development. The other 
limitation of a PUD is that it is designed 
primarily for the development of larger 
sites, and with few exceptions, is not 
well suited for use on individual lots in 
an urban environment.  

Clustered open space developments 
have had success in preserving open 
space and natural features. This 
type of development tends to offer 
recreational amenities not available 
in conventional subdivisions. 
While open space developments 
are a significant improvement 

A new urbanist development in Beverly Hills, Michigan includes traditional homes 
on small lots and pedestrian-oriented streetscape.

MAPDEC2006.indd   8 1/16/2007   2:30:58 PM

28

Section IX, Itema.



S M A R T  G R O W T H  T A C T I C S  -  D E C E M B E R  2 0 0 6 3

from conventional zoning, the 
developments still tend to be 
separated, single-use tracts of land.

Many communities have adopted 
design standards in a variety of forms.  
Some have adopted separate design 
guidelines or relied on the guidelines 
contained within the master plan. 
However, recent court decisions have 
held that a community cannot enforce 
requirements that are not specified in 
the ordinance.

Instead of guidelines, design standards 
for architectural and landscaping 
requirements are now becoming 
more common place within zoning 
ordinances. Some communities have 
adopted architectural regulations 
that require use of high-quality 
building materials. Others include 
discretionary standards whose result 
can be unpredictable and run the risk 
of inconsistent application. While these 
design standards have been effective in 
improving the appearance of buildings 
and landscaping, the standards fail 
to create meaningful change in the 
urban form - the end result is usually 
aesthetically-pleasing sprawl.

PRINCIPLES ASSOCIATED WITH 
FORM-BASED CODES
The Form-Based Codes Institute defines 
form-based codes as “[a] method of 
regulating development to achieve a 
specific urban form. Form-based codes 
create a predictable public realm by 
controlling physical form primarily, 
and land uses secondarily.” Form-based 
codes go beyond conventional zoning 

by addressing the relationship of the 
building to the streetscape and the 
proper relationship between buildings in 
order to define a desired urban form.

First and foremost, form-based codes 
are place-based. The codes are adapted 
to fit the unique characteristics of a 
community and intended to require that 
new development fit within the context 
of the existing community and reinforce 
a unique sense of place.  

Next, form-based codes allow for 
the unique ecology of a community 
by permitting a mixture of uses. The 
codes reflect the importance of the 
relationship between various uses 

and building types to one-another, as 
part of an integral neighborhood and 
overall community.  

Form-based codes are purposeful and 
not reactive. Conventional zoning 
tends to be reactive in that it restricts 
and focuses on preventing development 
that would be damaging to neighboring 
properties or the community (i.e. 
zoning tells you what you cannot 
do). Form-based codes, on the other 
hand, document the desired form of 
development and prescribe building 
form requirements to achieve the 
desired community vision.

Form-based codes connect the urban 
form and land use by providing for 
specific building types that are suited 
for the appropriate land use. They 
also relate the use and building type 
to the streetscape to comprehensively 
address the desired urban form for the 
neighborhood.

Form-based codes provide for 
development that is compact, mixed-
use, and pedestrian friendly to create 
livable neighborhoods and healthy 
vibrant communities.

Design standards can improve the appearance of the building and site 
landscaping, but are not effective in changing the underlying form.

Farmington has adopted a form-based code as part of the central business district 
that reflects the traditional urban fabric that the community values. 

MAPDEC2006.indd   9 1/16/2007   2:31:01 PM

29

Section IX, Itema.



M I C H I G A N  A S S O C I A T I O N  O F  P L A N N I N G — M A K I N G  G R E A T  P L A C E S  H A P P E N4

And finally, form-based codes are 
graphic and designed to be easy to use 
and understand.

KEY DIFFERENCES BETWEEN 
CONVENTIONAL ZONING AND 
FORM-BASED CODES
1.   Conventional zoning is use-based, 

with a community divided into 
zoning districts which segregate 
land uses. Form-based codes 
de-emphasize use and divide a 
community into neighborhoods or 
specific street corridors, that have 
a distinct and consistent character, 
while allowing a mixture of 
compatible uses.

2.   Conventional zoning attempts 
to create uniformity throughout 
a district by applying uniform 
intensity parameters such as setback, 
height, density, and floor area 
ratios. Form-based codes embrace 
diversity in neighborhoods by 
reflecting different standards for 
different types of buildings. Because 
use and building type are tied 
together, the standards ensure the 
building form relates properly to 
the streetscape and adjacent uses.  

3.   Where conventional zoning 
focuses on use and dimensional 
requirements, form-based codes 
focus more on the building form 
and how it relates to the public 
streetscape. In order to define the 
streetscape, form-based codes often 
prescribe build-to-lines where 
buildings are required to be set a 
specific distance from the front 

lot line. Conventional zoning 
uses minimum setbacks to create 
building envelopes; however, the 
ultimate location and form of 
the building within the envelope 
is unpredictable. As a result, 
conventional zoning has a primary 
focus on the lot and pays little to 
no attention to the streetscape.  
Form-based codes take a more 
holistic approach by considering 
the building form as it relates to the 
streetscape.

4.   Conventional zoning has limited 
ability to effect change, as it tends 
to prohibit development that is 
determined to be inappropriate.  
Form-based codes are more 

prescriptive and do a better job of 
describing the desired urban form.  
The result is the development of 
a neighborhood that encourages 
pedestrian activity, social 
interaction, and local investment.

WHAT IS REGULATED
An underlying premise of form-based 
codes is that the public realm (i.e. the 
streetscape) is defined by the buildings 
that line it. Because of this, building 
placement and site orientation are 
paramount in the form-based code. 
The front building line location is 
based upon the type of street frontage. 
In a traditional downtown setting, 
there would be a “zero front lot line” 
or “build-to” requirement with all 
parking required to be at the rear of the 
building. In a residential neighborhood, 
there would be a requirement that 
the front of a residence be placed at a 
specific setback from the front lot line.

Once the streetscape has been defined 
by the building placement, the building 
elements can be considered to ensure 
that the building relates properly to the 
streetscape and adjacent buildings. In 
a business district, this would include 
requirements for doors and windows 

USE
Operations FORM

Conventional Zoning 

Focused on use 

FORM

Operations

USE

Form-Based Codes 

More focus on design and form 

Example of a mixed-use building with retail on the first floor and residential on 
the upper floors. Specific design elements for retail along the sidewalk include 
window articulation and treatment at the corner. 

MAPDEC2006.indd   10 1/16/2007   2:31:02 PM

30

Section IX, Itema.



S M A R T  G R O W T H  T A C T I C S  -  D E C E M B E R  2 0 0 6 5

along the sidewalk, window articulation 
on upper floors, building expression 
lines, and other details such as cornices. 
In residential areas these may be 
requirements for front porches or a 
limitation on front-loaded garages.

While uses are secondary to building 
form, they are nonetheless still 
important. Similar to a conventional 
zoning ordinance, different uses are 
allowed in each zone or district.  
Form-based codes allow a greater 
mixture of uses, but tie the use to 
the required building form. Unlike 
most conventional zoning ordinances, 
form-based codes also regulate use 
on the vertical plane. In a downtown 
setting, there may be a requirement 
for retail uses on the first floor and 
an allowance for residential or office 
on upper floors. There may also be a 
requirement along a downtown “Main 
Street” for mandatory retail frontages on 
the first floor to create a strong synergy 
between retail uses and an interesting 
environment for shoppers.

Form-based codes also contain 
regulations for accessory structures and 
uses. This includes specific requirements 
for the placement and design of 
parking lots. Other elements such as 
accessory buildings, loading areas, waste 
receptacles, screening walls, landscaping, 
and lighting are also addressed.

Another major improvement in the 
form-based code approach is that it 
goes beyond just regulating the site, 
by tying together the site and the 
public realm (i.e. the streetscape). 
Building regulations relate to design 
requirements for streets, sidewalks, on-
street parking, street trees, and public 
spaces such as plazas.

An important aspect of a form-based 
code is that all of the regulations be 
tied together. The use is tied directly 
to the building type. The building 
type in-turn dictates form and building 
elements. The building form also 
relates to the street frontage, tying all 
of the elements together.

While form-based codes are effective tools 
that can help realize a community’s vision, 
they are not a panacea that will cure all 
problems. There are some limitations of form-
based codes and some problems that the 
codes may present to local communities:

Form-based codes tend to cost two to four 
times that of a conventional zoning ordinance.  
This is because of the upfront effort 
required to complete a detailed inventory 
of the community’s existing urban form, the 
additional public involvement, and design 
work that goes into creating the regulating 
plan and the code.

Form-based codes require an illustrative 
regulating plan that is often based upon some 
form of urban design plan. This type of plan 
tends to be more involved than a zoning map.  

Since Michigan streets are often regulated 
by separate authorities, there may be limited 
ability for a form-based code to regulate 
existing public streets. This may be more 
of a problem in townships, where all of the 
roads fall under the jurisdiction of the road 
commission, and less of a problem in cities 
that control their own city streets.  

Form-based codes are prescriptive and 
very rigid, which may be viewed by 
developers as a limitation on what they can 
do with their property and a limitation on an 
architect’s creativity.

There is a lack of specific enabling legislation 
as the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Public 
Act 110 of 2006) does not specifically provide 
for form-based codes. However, these types 
of codes are being developed throughout the 
United States and in other states, without 
specific enabling legislation. 

A criticism of new-urbanism (which form-
based codes are closely tied to) is that it 
is not environmentally sensitive; however, 
by developing more compact communities, 
the amount of land consumed by urban 
sprawl and dependence on the automobile 
is reduced. And unlike much of the new-
urbanist developments that are “new 
towns,” advocates of form-based codes 
have used form-based codes more as a tool 
to facilitate infill and redevelopment within 
existing urban communities.  

POTENTIAL PITFALLS 
WITH FORM-BASED 
CODES

HOW FORM-BASED CODES ARE 
STRUCTURED
The form-based code is based upon 
a regulating plan. A regulating plan 
is analogous with and functions 
similarly to a zoning map, except 
that it provides a greater amount of 
specificity to the street types, block 
dimensions, and building lines. 
Regulating plans may also indicate the 
locations for parks, squares, and plazas. 
For downtown shopping districts, 
the regulatory plan may indicate a 
mandatory retail frontage.

The zone on the regulating plan permits 
specific uses and corresponding building 
types. Building types may include single 
family dwellings, townhouses, live-work 
units, retail buildings, and others. The 
underlying principle is that the use, 
building, and street are interrelated.  

Based upon the zone and the building 
type proposed, there are specific 
placement and building envelope 
requirements. These graphically depict 
building lines, setbacks, building 
height, and parking lot location. These 
requirements can be compared to the 
schedule of area and bulk requirements 
in a conventional zoning ordinance, 
except that they rely more on graphics 
to depict requirements and tend to 
be more prescriptive (e.g., building 
lines state exactly where the front of 
the building is required to be placed, 
instead of stating minimum setbacks). 
Building height is often defined in both 
minimum and maximum measurements 
to ensure that the building is tall enough 
to define the streetscape, but not so tall 
that they overwhelm other buildings.

Building elements are required relative 
to the type of building proposed. These 
include standards for building materials, 
doors and windows, building expression 
lines, front porches, etc. Note that 
most form-based codes do not regulate 
architecture – if the building has the 
proper form, then the architectural 
style of the building is less important. 
However, it may be appropriate to 
include architectural regulations in a 

MAPDEC2006.indd   11 1/16/2007   2:31:02 PM

31

Section IX, Itema.



6 M I C H I G A N  A S S O C I A T I O N  O F  P L A N N I N G — M A K I N G  G R E A T  P L A C E S  H A P P E N

How do form-
based codes 
work in the 
real world?

Form-based codes have been adopted by 
communities throughout the country. Some 
applications in Michigan are as follows:

Downtown Farmington:  As part of the City of 
Farmington’s Downtown Development Plan, 
there is a detailed urban design plan that 
includes specific downtown design standards.  
The city wanted to promote redevelopment 
within the existing downtown while ensuring 
that the zoning regulations would be reflective 
of the existing community character and the 
recommendations of the plan.  

A form-based code was prepared for the 
Downtown Zoning District to encourage 
redevelopment that embraces the historic 
character of Farmington, including 
traditional storefronts and a pedestrian 
scale environment. The form-based code 
requires buildings be built to the front lot line 
and parking lots be located in the rear. In 
order to maintain a well-defined streetscape, 
maximum and minimum building heights are 
included. Detailed building design standards 
to ensure that buildings relate properly 
to the streetscape at a pedestrian scale 
are included. Not only does the ordinance 
permit a vertical mixture of uses, but it 
builds in incentives to encourage mixed-use 
developments.  

Genoa Town Center:  As part of its master 
plan, Genoa Township identified a location 
for a new Genoa Town Center. The new 
town center location was centered on one 

of the few remaining large vacant areas 
along the Grand River Avenue corridor 
between Brighton and Howell. The township 
wanted to see a high quality, mixed-use 
development for this site that would create a 
new town center and also serve as a catalyst 
for redevelopment of the older commercial 
properties in the immediate area. As part 
of the master plan process, the township 
developed a detailed urban design plan for 
the new town center 
area.

The Genoa Town 
Center is planned to 
become a mixed-use 
town center with 
local businesses, 
neighborhood 
service 
establishments, and 
traditional residential 
neighborhoods. 
Residential uses will 
provide a variety 
of housing types 
including apartments 
on upper floors above commercial uses, 
traditional townhouses, and single family 
homes on smaller lots. This area will be 
integrated into a pedestrian-friendly, walkable 
area with sidewalks connecting all uses and 
community parks and plazas. 

To implement the Genoa Town Center, a 
form-based code overlay zoning district was 
adopted that requires all new development 
to follow strict requirements for a more 
traditional form of development that is more 
characteristic of a small town. The overlay 
zone not only allows for a mixture of uses, 
but has incentives to encourage truly 
integrated mixed-use development. The 
overlay zone includes building placement 
requirements that create traditional, 
pedestrian-friendly streetscapes and reduce 
the dominance of the automobile. It also 
includes detailed design standards for 
buildings, streetscapes, and public open 
spaces.

Grand Rapids:  The City of Grand Rapids is 
nearing completion of an ambitious project 
to convert its 1967 zoning ordinance to a 
modern form-based code. It was clear that 
simply updating the original ordinance would 
not further the goals of the city’s new Master 
Plan: a Plan that emphasizes neighborhood 
preservation while transforming the landscape 

in critical areas.

An extensive public outreach effort revealed 
the desire of neighborhood groups, 
business associations, and others, to 
develop flexible, user-friendly land use 
regulations. Accordingly, the code includes 
a number of unique elements: increased 
use of administrative approvals, flexible 
nonconforming use and building regulations, 

and incentives for quality design and 
development.

The language of form-based codes is 
developed with an eye toward the specific 
physical plan. This includes a broad range 
of regulations that encompass building 
alignment toward the street (setbacks, building 
orientation), spaces between buildings (side 
setbacks, separation between disparate uses), 
and heights, each of which can be described in 
ranges of acceptable values.

This effort represents the most significant 
attempt to introduce form-based codes for a 
city the size of Grand Rapids in the state of 
Michigan, and in much of the country as well.

IS A FORM-BASED CODE 
RIGHT FOR YOUR 
COMMUNITY?
Form-based codes can be an effective tool 
that can be used in most communities. Some 
communities are appropriate for a community-
wide form-based code, while others should 
utilize this new technique for certain subareas. 
Most importantly, the community must have 
a commitment to create a better place and 
undergo the process of gaining consensus 
on the desired urban form of the community.  
Form-based codes can be an effective tool in 

A form-based code was developed for 
Downtown Farmington to encourage 
infill development while preserving 
the traditional pedestrian-friendly 
character of the city.

MAPDEC2006.indd   12 1/16/2007   2:31:10 PM

32

Section IX, Itema.



7S M A R T  G R O W T H  T A C T I C S  -  D E C E M B E R  2 0 0 6

form-based code 
for a historic 
district.

Because building 
form and 
streetscape are 
interrelated, 
form-based 
codes include 
requirements for 
the streetscape, 
such as on-street 
parking, sidewalk 
width, and street 
trees.

Form-based 
codes also include 
many of the 
other regulations 
of conventional 
zoning 
ordinances such 
as definitions, 
administrative 
procedures, 
zoning board of 
appeals, nonconforming, etc.

HOW APPROVALS ARE 
PROCESSED
Because the regulating plan sets forth 
detailed and predictable building form 
requirements, approvals that are in 
accordance with the regulating plan 
can be approved administratively. This 
is possible because the unpredictability 
and greater discretion typically involved 
with conventional zoning does not 
exist with form-based codes. The idea 
is that if a developer is willing to follow 
all of the detailed requirements of the 
regulating plan and the form-based 
code, there should be little, if any, room 
for discretion, and the approval should 
be handled administratively. However, 
if the developer wants to deviate, then 
approval is required before the planning 
commission. Essentially, form-based 
codes make it easy to do the right thing, 
and harder to deviate from the code and 
regulating plan.

Because the regulating plan and form-
based code are so detailed, the code 
must also anticipate situations that 
don’t fit requirements or where unique 
development forms are proposed. 
Typically, a form-based code can 
allow for three levels of departure. 
Administrative departures would be 
minor in nature and can be approved 
as part of the administrative approval 
process. The authority for administrative 
departures needs to be specifically 
spelled out in the code, such as allowing 
the planning director to substitute 
landscaping in place of a screening wall.  
Major departures that deviate from the 
regulating plan would require approval 
by the planning commission, such as 
allowing a front façade that does not 
meet the building design requirements.  
This could be evaluated by the planning 
commission based upon a set of 
standards that relate to the regulatory 
intent. A third level of deviation should 
also be built into the code that requires 
a variance from the zoning board of 
appeals, such as departures from the 
build-to line or exceeding height 

limits. The variances would have to be 
reviewed based upon the standard tests 
of practical difficulty.  

PROCESS IN DEVELOPING A 
FORM-BASED CODE
When embarking on a significant 
change in how a community regulates 
development, the first step is to have a 
commitment to creating better places.  
This should go beyond just a desire for 
change - the desires of the community 
should be articulated through the 
master plan or other document, such 
as a downtown plan, so that there is an 
underlying basis to move forward.  

A determination needs to be made 
on the type of code desired and the 
geographic area to be covered. The 
form-based code could be integrated 
into a community-wide ordinance, or 
perhaps applied to a specific corridor, 
neighborhood, or business district.

Next, there needs to be an inventory 
and analysis of existing conditions to 
document the existing “forms” of 

MAPDEC2006.indd   13 1/16/2007   2:31:10 PM

33

Section IX, Itema.



M I C H I G A N  A S S O C I A T I O N  O F  P L A N N I N G — M A K I N G  G R E A T  P L A C E S  H A P P E N8

This publication was produced by the Michigan Association of Planning.

Photo and graphic credits: LSL Planning, Inc.

SmartGrowthTactics

219 South Main Street, Suite 300
Ann Arbor, MI 48104

phone: 734-913-2000  fax: 734-913-2061  web: www.planningmi.org

Non-Profit 

Organization 

U.S. Postage 

PAID 

Permit 388 

Detroit, MI

the community. This inventory can 
be fairly labor intensive and involves 
detailed analysis of lot widths, setbacks, 
building heights, etc. With a good 
understanding of the existing “forms” of 
the community, a public process should 
then be conducted to gain a consensus 
on the existing community quality that 
should be maintained or new ones to be 
achieved. This is often done through a 
design charrette or workshop.

From the inventory, analysis, and public 
process, detailed urban standards are 
developed for features such as streets, 
blocks, building placement, and land 
use. Building form standards will also be 
developed for the various building types 
within the community. These standards 
are then developed into an ordinance 
and applied to a regulating plan. 

APPLICATIONS OF FORM-BASED 
CODE
Form-based codes can be applied to a 
variety of geographic areas, from a specific 
subarea, such as a downtown, to the entire 
community. Form-based codes can also 
be used as tools to preserve the character 

of an area or as mechanisms of change to 
transform an area.  

The most common application of form-
based codes has been to subareas. The 
codes are used in existing downtowns 
and historic districts in order to preserve 
and enhance the traditional character. 
They are also used to preserve the 
character of specific neighborhoods 
and insure that new infill development 
is compatible with existing homes. 
Additionally, they are being used as 
effective tools to transform outdated 
strip commercial corridors into new 
town centers.  

While form-based codes have 
been applied most often to specific 
subareas, more communities are 
looking to adopt form-based codes 
on a community-wide basis. National 
experts in form-based code have 
recognized that a pure form-based 
approach is not going to be the best 
application in all areas of a community 
- there will still need to be zoning 
districts for industrial uses such 
as truck terminals, foundries, and 

hazardous uses. There may also be 
areas within the community that are 
more appropriate for automobile-
oriented uses such as dealerships and 
fast-food restaurants. For this reason, 
community-wide form-based codes 
are going to be a hybrid, with some 
areas regulated by form-based zoning 
districts and other areas by more 
conventional zoning districts. 

Conclusion
Form-based codes are land development 
regulatory tools that places primary 
emphasis on the physical form of 
the built environment with the end 
goal of producing a specific type 
of ‘place.’ The codes assert more 
control over a community’s form 
and lead to improvements in the way 
the community functions. For more 
information on form-based codes visit 
www.formbasedcodes.org. 

By Jeffrey R. Purdy, AICP, Partner at 
LSL Planning, Inc. 

MAPDEC2006.indd   14 1/16/2007   2:31:11 PM

34

Section IX, Itema.



35

Section IX, Itemb.



36

Section X, Itema.



37

Section X, Itema.



38

Section X, Itema.



39

Section X, Itemb.



40

Section X, Itemb.



41

Section X, Itemb.



42

Section X, Itemc.



43

Section X, Itemc.



44

Section X, Itemc.



45

Section X, Itemc.



46

Section X, Itemc.



47

Section X, Itemc.



48

Section X, Itemc.



49

Section X, Itemc.



50

Section X, Itemc.



51

Section X, Itemc.



52

Section X, Itemc.



53

Section X, Itemc.



Page 1 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

Otis Service and Repair Order 

We propose to furnish the necessary material and labor on the following units:

Unit Customer Designation 
F81543 LIFT 1 

SCOPE OF WORK

CAT 1 HYDRO TEST PACKAGE
Otis will provide labor and material to perform the following CAT 1 Hydro Testing on the unit/s indicated.

The CAT 1 Hydro Package covers the following tests to be performed:

Test Name: Scope of Work: Code Reference:
Pressure Relief Valve 
&
No Load Test

We will test the hydraulic 
system, control valve 
pressure relief setting, 
limit switches, low oil 
switch, low pressure 
switch, and oil buffers (if 
provided) for proper 
operation. Portions of this 
test may be completed 
at full operating pressure 
as required by the 
Category 1 periodic 
code test or as required 
by the local authority 
having jurisdiction (AHJ).

ASME A17.1: 8.6.5.6  8.6.5.9  
8.6.5.12  8.6.5.14.1-2  
8.6.5.14.3a,3h,3i  8.6.5.14.4-5

Emergency 
Communications Test

We will test In-car 
communication devices, 
including telephone, 
intercom, and alarm bells 
to ensure proper 
operation as required by 
code or by the local 

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.15  8.6.4.19.15

9/24/2024 

CUSTOMER NAME 
COMMUNITYHALL /MACKINAC IS
187 Market St
Mackinac Island, MI 49757

OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY
1777C S GARFIELD AVE
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49686

OTIS CONTACT
Michaela Watson 
Phone: +1 (231) 577-8827
Email: Michaela.Meek@otis.com

PROJECT LOCATION
COMMUNITYHALL /MACKINAC I
7358 MARKET ST
MACKINAC ISLAND, MI 49757-

5106 

PROPOSAL NUMBER
QTE-002010774

54

Section X, Itemd.



Page 2 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

authority having 
jurisdiction (AHJ).

Evacuation Device 
Test - Cat 1 (2013) (If 
equipped.)

We will test the device 
designed to restrict 
hoistway and car door 
opening.

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.19.16

Fire Service Annual 
Test (If equipped.)

We will test the Fire 
Service Operation Phase 
1 and Phase 2 for proper 
operation.
The test will include hall 
activation and car 
activation, with car 
operation on Phase 2 to 
at least one landing 
away from the main 
egress landing.
If required by the local 
AHJ supplemental 
documentation will be 
provided.

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.19.6

Cab Emergency Light 
& Alarm Bell Test

We will test in-car 
emergency lighting 
devices to ensure proper 
operation as required by 
code or by the local 
authority having 
jurisdiction (AHJ).

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.15

Hoistway Door Lock 
Safety Test

We will check all 
hoistway door gibs and 
vision panels
We will test and confirm 
door locks to verify an 
open lock will prevent 
movement.

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.13.1

These tests impose much greater stresses on the equipment than those of normal operation. It is agreed 
that in making inspections or tests, you assume any and all liability for personal injury (including death) or 
property damage in connection with, related to, or arising out of the action or failure of any part of the 
elevator equipment and that you agree to defend, indemnify, and hold us harmless from same. If repairs 
are necessary to obtain proper operation of the equipment to meet the requirements of these tests, such 
work will be an extra to the Contract.
    Material provided shall be installed in accordance with the ASME A17.1 Safety Code for Elevators and 
Escalators.

The customer will be responsible for paying local inspection fees if applicable.

Your account representative will contact you to schedule the work. All work will be performed during 
regular working days and hours of the Elevator Trade unless otherwise specified above. The price quoted 
below does not include sales tax and is valid for 30 days from the date specified above. The work will be 
scheduled based on the availability of material and manpower to complete the job efficiently.

55

Section X, Itemd.



Page 3 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

The scope proposed herein represents the entire scope that we are contracted for, if additional work is 
required by others to allow for completion of this work and/or for the inspection to occur, that work is not 
included. If additional labor and material are needed, a supplemental proposal will be sent.           

56

Section X, Itemd.



Page 4 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

PRICE
$2,887.50
Two thousand eight hundred eighty-seven and 50/100 dollars

This price is based on a one hundred  percent (100%) downpayment in the amount of $2,887.50.

PAYMENT TERMS: 
• The downpayment amount is due in full prior to Otis ordering material and/or mobilizing.
• If you choose the alternative downpayment amount listed below, the corresponding adjustment shall 

be applied to the base contract amount.

Downpayment Percent Price Adjustment Percentage Authorization (Initial)
25%  + 10% 
75% + 5%

In the event 100% of the contract price is not paid up front, we must be paid the remaining balance no 
later than the completion of work. Final invoice will be submitted once work is scheduled.

This proposal, including the provisions printed on the pages following, shall be a binding contract between 
you, or the party identified below for whom you are authorized to contract (collectively referred to herein 
as "you"), and us when accepted by you through execution of this proposal by you and approved by our 
authorized representative; or by your authorizing us to perform work for the project and our commencing 
such work.

SUGGESTED BY: KEVIN J PAQUIN 3
TITLE: Mechanic
 

   

Accepted in Duplicate

 COMMUNITYHALL /MACKINAC IS Otis Elevator Company

Date:

Signed: 

Date:

Signed: 

Print Name:  Print Name:  Adam Drake

Title:   Title:  Director & GM - Michigan

Email: Email:   

Company Name: COMMUNITYHALL /MACKINAC IS 

□ Principal, Owner or Authorized Representative of 
Principal or Owner

□ Agent __________________________________ 
(Name of Principal or Owner)

57

Section X, Itemd.



Page 5 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. This quotation is subject to change or withdrawal by us prior to acceptance by you.
2. The work shall be performed for the agreed price plus any applicable sales, excise or similar taxes as required by law. In addition 

to the agreed price, you shall pay to us any future applicable tax imposed on us, our suppliers or you in connection with the 
performance of the work described.

3. Payments shall be made as follows: A down payment of One Hundred  percent (100.0%) of the price shall be paid by you upon 
your signing of this document. Full payment shall be made on completion if the work is completed within a thirty days period. If 
the work is not completed within a thirty day period, monthly progress payments shall be made based on the value of any 
equipment ready or delivered. We reserve the right to discontinue our work at any time until payments shall have been made 
as agreed and we have assurance satisfactory to us that subsequent payments will be made when due. Payments not received 
within thirty (30) days of the date of invoice shall be subject to interest accrued at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum 
or at the maximum rate allowed by applicable law, whichever is less. We shall also be entitled to reimbursement from you of 
the expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred in collecting any overdue payments.

4. Our performance is conditioned upon your securing any required governmental approvals for the installation of any equipment 
provided hereunder and your providing our workmen with a safe place in which to work. Additionally, you agree to notify us if 
you are aware or become aware prior to the completion of the work of the existence of asbestos or other hazardous material 
in any elevator hoistway, machine room, hallway or other place in the building where Otis personnel are or may be required to 
perform their work. In the event it should become necessary to abate, encapsulate or remove asbestos or other hazardous 
materials from the building, you agree to be responsible for such abatement, encapsulation or removal, and in such event Otis 
shall be entitled to delay its work until it is determined to our satisfaction that no hazard exists and compensation for delays 
encountered if such delay is more than sixty (60) days. In any event, we reserve the right to discontinue our work in the building 
whenever in our opinion this provision is being violated.

5. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, it is understood that the work shall be performed during our regular working hours of our 
regular working days. If overtime work is mutually agreed upon and performed, an additional charge therefore, at our usual 
rates for such work, shall be added to the contract price. The performance of our work hereunder is conditioned on your 
performing the preparatory work and supplying the necessary data specified on the front of this proposal or in the attached 
specification, if any. Should we be required to make an unscheduled return to your site to begin or complete the work due to 
your request, acts or omissions, then such return visits shall be subject to additional charges at our then current labor rates.

6. Title to any material to be furnished hereunder shall pass to you when final payment for such material is received. In addition, 
we shall retain a security interest in all material furnished hereunder and not paid for in full. You agree that a copy of this 
Agreement may be used as a financing statement for the purpose of placing upon public record our interest in any material 
furnished hereunder, and you agree to execute a UCC -1 form or any other document reasonably requested by us for that 
purpose.

7. Except insofar as your equipment may be covered by an Otis maintenance or service contract, it is agreed that we will make 
no examination of your equipment other than that necessary to do the work described in this contract and assume no 
responsibility for any part of your equipment except that upon which work has been done under this contract.

8. Otis shall not be liable for any loss, damage or delay due to any cause beyond our reasonable control including, but not limited 
to, acts of government, strikes, lockouts, other labor disputes, fire, explosion, theft, floods, water damage, weather damage, 
extreme weather, traffic conditions, epidemic, pandemic, quarantine (including Covid-19), sabotage, cyber security, national 
emergency, act of terrorism, earthquake, riot, civil commotion, war or insurrection, vandalism, misuse, abuse, mischief, or acts 
of God or nature.

9. We warrant that all services furnished will be performed in a workmanlike manner. We also warrant that any equipment provided 
hereunder shall be free from defects in workmanship and material. Our sole responsibility under this warranty shall be at our 
option to correct any defective services and to either repair or replace any component of the equipment found to be defective 
in workmanship or material provided that written notice of such defects shall have been given to us by you within ninety (90) 
days after completion of the work or such longer period as may be indicated on the front of this form. All defective parts that 
are removed and replaced by us shall become our property. We do not agree under this warranty to bear the cost of repairs 
or replacements due to vandalism, abuse, misuse, neglect, normal wear and tear, modifications not performed by us, improper 
or insufficient maintenance by others, or any causes beyond our control. We shall conduct, at our own expense, the entire 
defense of any claim, suit or action alleging that, without further combination, the use by you of any equipment provided 
hereunder directly infringes any patent, but only on the conditions that (a) we receive prompt written notice of such claim, suit 
or action and full opportunity and authority to assume the sole defense thereof, including settlement and appeals, and all 
information available to you for such defense; (b) said equipment is made according to a specification or design furnished by 
us; and (c) the claim, suit or action is brought against you. Provided all of the foregoing conditions have been met, we shall, at 
our own expense, either settle said claim, suit or action or shall pay all damages excluding consequential damages and costs 
awarded by the court therein and, if the use or resale of such equipment is finally enjoined, we shall, at our option, (i) procure 
for you the right to use the equipment, (ii) replace the equipment with equivalent noninfringing equipment, (iii) modify the 
equipment so it becomes noninfringing but equivalent, or (iv) remove the equipment and refund the purchase price (if any) less 
a reasonable allowance for use, damage and obsolescence.
THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH HEREIN ARE THE EXCLUSIVE WARRANTIES GIVEN; WE MAKE NO OTHER WARRANTIES EXPRESS 
OR IMPLIED, AND SPECIFICALLY MAKE NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR OF FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE; AND 
THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS ARTICLE ARE IN LIEU OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES AND ANY OTHER OBLIGATION OR 
LIABILITY ON OUR PART.

10. Under no circumstances shall either party be liable for special, indirect, liquidated, or consequential damages in contract, tort, 
including negligence, warranty or otherwise, notwithstanding any indemnity provision to the contrary. Notwithstanding any 
provision in any contract document to the contrary, our acceptance is conditioned on being allowed additional time for the 
performance of the Work due to delays beyond our reasonable control. Your remedies set forth herein are exclusive and our 
liability with respect to any contract, or anything done in connection therewith such as performance or breach thereof, or from 

58

Section X, Itemd.



Page 6 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

the manufacture, sale, delivery, installation, repair or use of any equipment furnished under this contract, whether in contract, 
in tort (including negligence), in warranty or otherwise, shall not exceed the price for the equipment or services rendered.

11. To the fullest extent permitted by law, you agree to defend, indemnify, and hold Otis harmless against any claim or suit for 
personal injury or property damage alleged to arise out of this contract, except to the extent that such damage or injury has 
been adjudicated as having been caused by Otis’ sole negligence.  In the event that Otis is requested to provide hoistway 
cartop/pit access to you, and/or to third parties acting at your request, direction, or control, and which may be subject to 
additional charges at Otis’ sole discretion, then in addition to the foregoing defense, indemnity and hold harmless obligations, 
you shall carry and maintain the following insurance throughout the duration of such work in the hoistway/cartop/pit areas, and 
will furnish to Otis a certificate of insurance evidencing the following: Commercial General Liability insurance, written on an 
occurrence basis, with limits on a per occurrence basis of at least $2,000,000 for personal injury or death, and $2,000,000 for 
property damage, naming Otis as additional insured.  Such insurance shall be issued by an insurer authorized to do business in 
the state or province where the property is located and the equipment and/or services are to be rendered, shall contain a 
clause in the policy setting forth the insurer’s acceptance of liability as set forth in this agreement, and a clause pursuant to 
which the insurer waives any right of subrogation as to Otis.  This policy shall be written as a primary policy only, and not 
contributing to or in excess of any insurance carried by Otis.  You shall provide Otis with at least thirty (30) days prior written 
notice of cancellation or material change in the coverage.

12. It is agreed that after completion of our work, you shall be responsible for ensuring that the operation of any equipment being 
furnished hereunder is periodically inspected. The interval between such inspections shall not be longer than what may be 
required by the applicable governing safety code.

13. In furtherance of OSHA’s directive contained in 29 C.F.R. § 1910.147(f)(2)(i), which requires that a service provider (an “outside 
employer”) and its customer (an “on-site employer”) must inform each other of their respective lock out/tag out (“LOTO”) 
procedures whenever outside servicing personnel are to be engaged in control of hazardous energy activities on the customer’s 
site, Otis incorporates by reference its mechanical LOTO procedures and its electrical LOTO procedures. These procedures can 
be obtained at www.otis.com by clicking on “Tools & Resources” on the home page, selecting “Lockout Tagout Policy” under 
the “Safety Information” column and downloading the “Lockout Tagout Policy Otis 6.0” and “Mechanical Energy Policy Otis 
7.0,” or the then most current version, both of which are in .pdf format. You agree that you will disseminate these procedures 
throughout your organization to the appropriate personnel who may interact with Otis personnel while Otis personnel are 
working on site at your facility and will ensure that such personnel comply with these LOTO procedures while Otis personnel are 
working on site.

14. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof and may not be 
modified by any terms on your order form or any other document and supersedes any prior written or oral communication 
relating to the same subject. Any amendment or modifications to this Agreement shall not be binding upon either party unless 
agreed to in writing by an authorized representative of each party.

15. This Contract will be deemed voidable, even after execution, if it is determined by Otis that performance of the services and/or 
engagement in the contractual relationship/transaction will violate, or is otherwise restricted by, any and all laws, regulations 
and/or orders, including sanctions laws, that are applicable to Otis or otherwise apply to Otis’ operations.

16. By accepting delivery of parts incorporating software, you agree that the transaction is not a sale of such software but merely 
a license to use such software solely for operating the unit(s) for which the part was provided, not to copy or let others copy 
such software for any purpose whatsoever, to keep such software in confidence as a trade secret, and not to transfer possession 
of such part to others except as a part of a transfer of ownership of the equipment in which such part is installed, provided that 
you inform us in writing about such ownership transfer and the transferee agrees in writing to abide by the above license terms 
prior to any such transfer. 

59

Section X, Itemd.



Page 1 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

Otis Service and Repair Order 

We propose to furnish the necessary material and labor on the following units:

Unit Customer Designation 
F81544 LIFT 1 

SCOPE OF WORK

CAT 1 HYDRO TEST PACKAGE
Otis will provide labor and material to perform the following CAT 1 Hydro Testing on the unit/s indicated.

The CAT 1 Hydro Package covers the following tests to be performed:

Test Name: Scope of Work: Code Reference:
Pressure Relief Valve 
&
No Load Test

We will test the hydraulic 
system, control valve 
pressure relief setting, 
limit switches, low oil 
switch, low pressure 
switch, and oil buffers (if 
provided) for proper 
operation. Portions of this 
test may be completed 
at full operating pressure 
as required by the 
Category 1 periodic 
code test or as required 
by the local authority 
having jurisdiction (AHJ).

ASME A17.1: 8.6.5.6  8.6.5.9  
8.6.5.12  8.6.5.14.1-2  
8.6.5.14.3a,3h,3i  8.6.5.14.4-5

Emergency 
Communications Test

We will test In-car 
communication devices, 
including telephone, 
intercom, and alarm bells 
to ensure proper 
operation as required by 
code or by the local 

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.15  8.6.4.19.15

9/24/2024 

CUSTOMER NAME 
MICHILIMACKINAC COURTHOUSE
7374 Market St
Mackinac Island, MI 49757

OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY
1777C S GARFIELD AVE
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49686

OTIS CONTACT
Michaela Watson 
Phone: +1 (231) 577-8827
Email: Michaela.Meek@otis.com

PROJECT LOCATION
MICHILIMACKINAC COURTHOUS
7374 MARKET ST
MACKINAC ISLAND, MI 49757-

5106 

PROPOSAL NUMBER
QTE-002010782

60

Section X, Itemd.



Page 2 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

authority having 
jurisdiction (AHJ).

Evacuation Device 
Test - Cat 1 (2013) (If 
equipped.)

We will test the device 
designed to restrict 
hoistway and car door 
opening.

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.19.16

Fire Service Annual 
Test (If equipped.)

We will test the Fire 
Service Operation Phase 
1 and Phase 2 for proper 
operation.
The test will include hall 
activation and car 
activation, with car 
operation on Phase 2 to 
at least one landing 
away from the main 
egress landing.
If required by the local 
AHJ supplemental 
documentation will be 
provided.

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.19.6

Cab Emergency Light 
& Alarm Bell Test

We will test in-car 
emergency lighting 
devices to ensure proper 
operation as required by 
code or by the local 
authority having 
jurisdiction (AHJ).

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.15

Hoistway Door Lock 
Safety Test

We will check all 
hoistway door gibs and 
vision panels
We will test and confirm 
door locks to verify an 
open lock will prevent 
movement.

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.13.1

These tests impose much greater stresses on the equipment than those of normal operation. It is agreed 
that in making inspections or tests, you assume any and all liability for personal injury (including death) or 
property damage in connection with, related to, or arising out of the action or failure of any part of the 
elevator equipment and that you agree to defend, indemnify, and hold us harmless from same. If repairs 
are necessary to obtain proper operation of the equipment to meet the requirements of these tests, such 
work will be an extra to the Contract.
    Material provided shall be installed in accordance with the ASME A17.1 Safety Code for Elevators and 
Escalators.

The customer will be responsible for paying local inspection fees if applicable.

Your account representative will contact you to schedule the work. All work will be performed during 
regular working days and hours of the Elevator Trade unless otherwise specified above. The price quoted 
below does not include sales tax and is valid for 30 days from the date specified above. The work will be 
scheduled based on the availability of material and manpower to complete the job efficiently.

61

Section X, Itemd.



Page 3 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

The scope proposed herein represents the entire scope that we are contracted for, if additional work is 
required by others to allow for completion of this work and/or for the inspection to occur, that work is not 
included. If additional labor and material are needed, a supplemental proposal will be sent.           

62

Section X, Itemd.



Page 4 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

PRICE
$1,443.75
One thousand four hundred forty-three and 75/100 dollars

This price is based on a one hundred  percent (100%) downpayment in the amount of $1,443.75.

PAYMENT TERMS: 
• The downpayment amount is due in full prior to Otis ordering material and/or mobilizing.
• If you choose the alternative downpayment amount listed below, the corresponding adjustment shall 

be applied to the base contract amount.

Downpayment Percent Price Adjustment Percentage Authorization (Initial)
25%  + 10% 
75% + 5%

In the event 100% of the contract price is not paid up front, we must be paid the remaining balance no 
later than the completion of work. Final invoice will be submitted once work is scheduled.

This proposal, including the provisions printed on the pages following, shall be a binding contract between 
you, or the party identified below for whom you are authorized to contract (collectively referred to herein 
as "you"), and us when accepted by you through execution of this proposal by you and approved by our 
authorized representative; or by your authorizing us to perform work for the project and our commencing 
such work.

SUGGESTED BY: KEVIN J PAQUIN 3
TITLE: Mechanic
 

   

Accepted in Duplicate

 MICHILIMACKINAC COURTHOUSE Otis Elevator Company

Date:

Signed: 

Date:

Signed: 

Print Name:  Print Name:  Adam Drake

Title:   Title:  Director & GM - Michigan

Email: Email:   

Company Name: MICHILIMACKINAC 
COURTHOUSE 

□ Principal, Owner or Authorized Representative of 
Principal or Owner

□ Agent __________________________________ 
(Name of Principal or Owner)

63

Section X, Itemd.



Page 5 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. This quotation is subject to change or withdrawal by us prior to acceptance by you.
2. The work shall be performed for the agreed price plus any applicable sales, excise or similar taxes as required by law. In addition 

to the agreed price, you shall pay to us any future applicable tax imposed on us, our suppliers or you in connection with the 
performance of the work described.

3. Payments shall be made as follows: A down payment of One Hundred  percent (100.0%) of the price shall be paid by you upon 
your signing of this document. Full payment shall be made on completion if the work is completed within a thirty days period. If 
the work is not completed within a thirty day period, monthly progress payments shall be made based on the value of any 
equipment ready or delivered. We reserve the right to discontinue our work at any time until payments shall have been made 
as agreed and we have assurance satisfactory to us that subsequent payments will be made when due. Payments not received 
within thirty (30) days of the date of invoice shall be subject to interest accrued at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum 
or at the maximum rate allowed by applicable law, whichever is less. We shall also be entitled to reimbursement from you of 
the expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred in collecting any overdue payments.

4. Our performance is conditioned upon your securing any required governmental approvals for the installation of any equipment 
provided hereunder and your providing our workmen with a safe place in which to work. Additionally, you agree to notify us if 
you are aware or become aware prior to the completion of the work of the existence of asbestos or other hazardous material 
in any elevator hoistway, machine room, hallway or other place in the building where Otis personnel are or may be required to 
perform their work. In the event it should become necessary to abate, encapsulate or remove asbestos or other hazardous 
materials from the building, you agree to be responsible for such abatement, encapsulation or removal, and in such event Otis 
shall be entitled to delay its work until it is determined to our satisfaction that no hazard exists and compensation for delays 
encountered if such delay is more than sixty (60) days. In any event, we reserve the right to discontinue our work in the building 
whenever in our opinion this provision is being violated.

5. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, it is understood that the work shall be performed during our regular working hours of our 
regular working days. If overtime work is mutually agreed upon and performed, an additional charge therefore, at our usual 
rates for such work, shall be added to the contract price. The performance of our work hereunder is conditioned on your 
performing the preparatory work and supplying the necessary data specified on the front of this proposal or in the attached 
specification, if any. Should we be required to make an unscheduled return to your site to begin or complete the work due to 
your request, acts or omissions, then such return visits shall be subject to additional charges at our then current labor rates.

6. Title to any material to be furnished hereunder shall pass to you when final payment for such material is received. In addition, 
we shall retain a security interest in all material furnished hereunder and not paid for in full. You agree that a copy of this 
Agreement may be used as a financing statement for the purpose of placing upon public record our interest in any material 
furnished hereunder, and you agree to execute a UCC -1 form or any other document reasonably requested by us for that 
purpose.

7. Except insofar as your equipment may be covered by an Otis maintenance or service contract, it is agreed that we will make 
no examination of your equipment other than that necessary to do the work described in this contract and assume no 
responsibility for any part of your equipment except that upon which work has been done under this contract.

8. Otis shall not be liable for any loss, damage or delay due to any cause beyond our reasonable control including, but not limited 
to, acts of government, strikes, lockouts, other labor disputes, fire, explosion, theft, floods, water damage, weather damage, 
extreme weather, traffic conditions, epidemic, pandemic, quarantine (including Covid-19), sabotage, cyber security, national 
emergency, act of terrorism, earthquake, riot, civil commotion, war or insurrection, vandalism, misuse, abuse, mischief, or acts 
of God or nature.

9. We warrant that all services furnished will be performed in a workmanlike manner. We also warrant that any equipment provided 
hereunder shall be free from defects in workmanship and material. Our sole responsibility under this warranty shall be at our 
option to correct any defective services and to either repair or replace any component of the equipment found to be defective 
in workmanship or material provided that written notice of such defects shall have been given to us by you within ninety (90) 
days after completion of the work or such longer period as may be indicated on the front of this form. All defective parts that 
are removed and replaced by us shall become our property. We do not agree under this warranty to bear the cost of repairs 
or replacements due to vandalism, abuse, misuse, neglect, normal wear and tear, modifications not performed by us, improper 
or insufficient maintenance by others, or any causes beyond our control. We shall conduct, at our own expense, the entire 
defense of any claim, suit or action alleging that, without further combination, the use by you of any equipment provided 
hereunder directly infringes any patent, but only on the conditions that (a) we receive prompt written notice of such claim, suit 
or action and full opportunity and authority to assume the sole defense thereof, including settlement and appeals, and all 
information available to you for such defense; (b) said equipment is made according to a specification or design furnished by 
us; and (c) the claim, suit or action is brought against you. Provided all of the foregoing conditions have been met, we shall, at 
our own expense, either settle said claim, suit or action or shall pay all damages excluding consequential damages and costs 
awarded by the court therein and, if the use or resale of such equipment is finally enjoined, we shall, at our option, (i) procure 
for you the right to use the equipment, (ii) replace the equipment with equivalent noninfringing equipment, (iii) modify the 
equipment so it becomes noninfringing but equivalent, or (iv) remove the equipment and refund the purchase price (if any) less 
a reasonable allowance for use, damage and obsolescence.
THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH HEREIN ARE THE EXCLUSIVE WARRANTIES GIVEN; WE MAKE NO OTHER WARRANTIES EXPRESS 
OR IMPLIED, AND SPECIFICALLY MAKE NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR OF FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE; AND 
THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS ARTICLE ARE IN LIEU OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES AND ANY OTHER OBLIGATION OR 
LIABILITY ON OUR PART.

10. Under no circumstances shall either party be liable for special, indirect, liquidated, or consequential damages in contract, tort, 
including negligence, warranty or otherwise, notwithstanding any indemnity provision to the contrary. Notwithstanding any 
provision in any contract document to the contrary, our acceptance is conditioned on being allowed additional time for the 
performance of the Work due to delays beyond our reasonable control. Your remedies set forth herein are exclusive and our 
liability with respect to any contract, or anything done in connection therewith such as performance or breach thereof, or from 

64

Section X, Itemd.



Page 6 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

the manufacture, sale, delivery, installation, repair or use of any equipment furnished under this contract, whether in contract, 
in tort (including negligence), in warranty or otherwise, shall not exceed the price for the equipment or services rendered.

11. To the fullest extent permitted by law, you agree to defend, indemnify, and hold Otis harmless against any claim or suit for 
personal injury or property damage alleged to arise out of this contract, except to the extent that such damage or injury has 
been adjudicated as having been caused by Otis’ sole negligence.  In the event that Otis is requested to provide hoistway 
cartop/pit access to you, and/or to third parties acting at your request, direction, or control, and which may be subject to 
additional charges at Otis’ sole discretion, then in addition to the foregoing defense, indemnity and hold harmless obligations, 
you shall carry and maintain the following insurance throughout the duration of such work in the hoistway/cartop/pit areas, and 
will furnish to Otis a certificate of insurance evidencing the following: Commercial General Liability insurance, written on an 
occurrence basis, with limits on a per occurrence basis of at least $2,000,000 for personal injury or death, and $2,000,000 for 
property damage, naming Otis as additional insured.  Such insurance shall be issued by an insurer authorized to do business in 
the state or province where the property is located and the equipment and/or services are to be rendered, shall contain a 
clause in the policy setting forth the insurer’s acceptance of liability as set forth in this agreement, and a clause pursuant to 
which the insurer waives any right of subrogation as to Otis.  This policy shall be written as a primary policy only, and not 
contributing to or in excess of any insurance carried by Otis.  You shall provide Otis with at least thirty (30) days prior written 
notice of cancellation or material change in the coverage.

12. It is agreed that after completion of our work, you shall be responsible for ensuring that the operation of any equipment being 
furnished hereunder is periodically inspected. The interval between such inspections shall not be longer than what may be 
required by the applicable governing safety code.

13. In furtherance of OSHA’s directive contained in 29 C.F.R. § 1910.147(f)(2)(i), which requires that a service provider (an “outside 
employer”) and its customer (an “on-site employer”) must inform each other of their respective lock out/tag out (“LOTO”) 
procedures whenever outside servicing personnel are to be engaged in control of hazardous energy activities on the customer’s 
site, Otis incorporates by reference its mechanical LOTO procedures and its electrical LOTO procedures. These procedures can 
be obtained at www.otis.com by clicking on “Tools & Resources” on the home page, selecting “Lockout Tagout Policy” under 
the “Safety Information” column and downloading the “Lockout Tagout Policy Otis 6.0” and “Mechanical Energy Policy Otis 
7.0,” or the then most current version, both of which are in .pdf format. You agree that you will disseminate these procedures 
throughout your organization to the appropriate personnel who may interact with Otis personnel while Otis personnel are 
working on site at your facility and will ensure that such personnel comply with these LOTO procedures while Otis personnel are 
working on site.

14. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof and may not be 
modified by any terms on your order form or any other document and supersedes any prior written or oral communication 
relating to the same subject. Any amendment or modifications to this Agreement shall not be binding upon either party unless 
agreed to in writing by an authorized representative of each party.

15. This Contract will be deemed voidable, even after execution, if it is determined by Otis that performance of the services and/or 
engagement in the contractual relationship/transaction will violate, or is otherwise restricted by, any and all laws, regulations 
and/or orders, including sanctions laws, that are applicable to Otis or otherwise apply to Otis’ operations.

16. By accepting delivery of parts incorporating software, you agree that the transaction is not a sale of such software but merely 
a license to use such software solely for operating the unit(s) for which the part was provided, not to copy or let others copy 
such software for any purpose whatsoever, to keep such software in confidence as a trade secret, and not to transfer possession 
of such part to others except as a part of a transfer of ownership of the equipment in which such part is installed, provided that 
you inform us in writing about such ownership transfer and the transferee agrees in writing to abide by the above license terms 
prior to any such transfer. 

65

Section X, Itemd.



Page 1 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

Otis Service and Repair Order 

We propose to furnish the necessary material and labor on the following units:

Unit Customer Designation 
F81545 LIFT 1 

SCOPE OF WORK

CAT 1 HYDRO TEST PACKAGE
Otis will provide labor and material to perform the following CAT 1 Hydro Testing on the unit/s indicated.

The CAT 1 Hydro Package covers the following tests to be performed:

Test Name: Scope of Work: Code Reference:
Pressure Relief Valve 
&
No Load Test

We will test the hydraulic 
system, control valve 
pressure relief setting, 
limit switches, low oil 
switch, low pressure 
switch, and oil buffers (if 
provided) for proper 
operation. Portions of this 
test may be completed 
at full operating pressure 
as required by the 
Category 1 periodic 
code test or as required 
by the local authority 
having jurisdiction (AHJ).

ASME A17.1: 8.6.5.6  8.6.5.9  
8.6.5.12  8.6.5.14.1-2  
8.6.5.14.3a,3h,3i  8.6.5.14.4-5

Emergency 
Communications Test

We will test In-car 
communication devices, 
including telephone, 
intercom, and alarm bells 
to ensure proper 
operation as required by 
code or by the local 

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.15  8.6.4.19.15

9/24/2024 

CUSTOMER NAME 
STUART HOUSE 
MUSEUM/MACKINACIS
P.O. BOX 455
Mackinac Island, MI 49757

OTIS ELEVATOR COMPANY
1777C S GARFIELD AVE
TRAVERSE CITY, MI 49686

OTIS CONTACT
Michaela Watson 
Phone: +1 (231) 577-8827
Email: Michaela.Meek@otis.com

PROJECT LOCATION
STUART HOUSE MUSEUM/MACKI
STUART HOUSE MUSEUM/MACKI
MACKINAC ISLAND, MI 49757 

PROPOSAL NUMBER
QTE-002010789

66

Section X, Itemd.



Page 2 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

authority having 
jurisdiction (AHJ).

Evacuation Device 
Test - Cat 1 (2013) (If 
equipped.)

We will test the device 
designed to restrict 
hoistway and car door 
opening.

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.19.16

Fire Service Annual 
Test (If equipped.)

We will test the Fire 
Service Operation Phase 
1 and Phase 2 for proper 
operation.
The test will include hall 
activation and car 
activation, with car 
operation on Phase 2 to 
at least one landing 
away from the main 
egress landing.
If required by the local 
AHJ supplemental 
documentation will be 
provided.

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.19.6

Cab Emergency Light 
& Alarm Bell Test

We will test in-car 
emergency lighting 
devices to ensure proper 
operation as required by 
code or by the local 
authority having 
jurisdiction (AHJ).

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.15

Hoistway Door Lock 
Safety Test

We will check all 
hoistway door gibs and 
vision panels
We will test and confirm 
door locks to verify an 
open lock will prevent 
movement.

ASME A17.1: 8.6.4.13.1

These tests impose much greater stresses on the equipment than those of normal operation. It is agreed 
that in making inspections or tests, you assume any and all liability for personal injury (including death) or 
property damage in connection with, related to, or arising out of the action or failure of any part of the 
elevator equipment and that you agree to defend, indemnify, and hold us harmless from same. If repairs 
are necessary to obtain proper operation of the equipment to meet the requirements of these tests, such 
work will be an extra to the Contract.
    Material provided shall be installed in accordance with the ASME A17.1 Safety Code for Elevators and 
Escalators.

The customer will be responsible for paying local inspection fees if applicable.

Your account representative will contact you to schedule the work. All work will be performed during 
regular working days and hours of the Elevator Trade unless otherwise specified above. The price quoted 
below does not include sales tax and is valid for 30 days from the date specified above. The work will be 
scheduled based on the availability of material and manpower to complete the job efficiently.

67

Section X, Itemd.



Page 3 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

The scope proposed herein represents the entire scope that we are contracted for, if additional work is 
required by others to allow for completion of this work and/or for the inspection to occur, that work is not 
included. If additional labor and material are needed, a supplemental proposal will be sent.           

68

Section X, Itemd.



Page 4 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

PRICE
$1,443.75
One thousand four hundred forty-three and 75/100 dollars

This price is based on a one hundred  percent (100%) downpayment in the amount of $1,443.75.

PAYMENT TERMS: 
• The downpayment amount is due in full prior to Otis ordering material and/or mobilizing.
• If you choose the alternative downpayment amount listed below, the corresponding adjustment shall 

be applied to the base contract amount.

Downpayment Percent Price Adjustment Percentage Authorization (Initial)
25%  + 10% 
75% + 5%

In the event 100% of the contract price is not paid up front, we must be paid the remaining balance no 
later than the completion of work. Final invoice will be submitted once work is scheduled.

This proposal, including the provisions printed on the pages following, shall be a binding contract between 
you, or the party identified below for whom you are authorized to contract (collectively referred to herein 
as "you"), and us when accepted by you through execution of this proposal by you and approved by our 
authorized representative; or by your authorizing us to perform work for the project and our commencing 
such work.

SUGGESTED BY: KEVIN J PAQUIN 3
TITLE: Mechanic
 

   

Accepted in Duplicate

 STUART HOUSE MUSEUM/MACKINACIS Otis Elevator Company

Date:

Signed: 

Date:

Signed: 

Print Name:  Print Name:  Adam Drake

Title:   Title:  Director & GM - Michigan

Email: Email:   

Company Name: STUART HOUSE 
MUSEUM/MACKINACIS 

□ Principal, Owner or Authorized Representative of 
Principal or Owner

□ Agent __________________________________ 
(Name of Principal or Owner)

69

Section X, Itemd.



Page 5 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

 TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. This quotation is subject to change or withdrawal by us prior to acceptance by you.
2. The work shall be performed for the agreed price plus any applicable sales, excise or similar taxes as required by law. In addition 

to the agreed price, you shall pay to us any future applicable tax imposed on us, our suppliers or you in connection with the 
performance of the work described.

3. Payments shall be made as follows: A down payment of One Hundred  percent (100.0%) of the price shall be paid by you upon 
your signing of this document. Full payment shall be made on completion if the work is completed within a thirty days period. If 
the work is not completed within a thirty day period, monthly progress payments shall be made based on the value of any 
equipment ready or delivered. We reserve the right to discontinue our work at any time until payments shall have been made 
as agreed and we have assurance satisfactory to us that subsequent payments will be made when due. Payments not received 
within thirty (30) days of the date of invoice shall be subject to interest accrued at the rate of eighteen percent (18%) per annum 
or at the maximum rate allowed by applicable law, whichever is less. We shall also be entitled to reimbursement from you of 
the expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred in collecting any overdue payments.

4. Our performance is conditioned upon your securing any required governmental approvals for the installation of any equipment 
provided hereunder and your providing our workmen with a safe place in which to work. Additionally, you agree to notify us if 
you are aware or become aware prior to the completion of the work of the existence of asbestos or other hazardous material 
in any elevator hoistway, machine room, hallway or other place in the building where Otis personnel are or may be required to 
perform their work. In the event it should become necessary to abate, encapsulate or remove asbestos or other hazardous 
materials from the building, you agree to be responsible for such abatement, encapsulation or removal, and in such event Otis 
shall be entitled to delay its work until it is determined to our satisfaction that no hazard exists and compensation for delays 
encountered if such delay is more than sixty (60) days. In any event, we reserve the right to discontinue our work in the building 
whenever in our opinion this provision is being violated.

5. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, it is understood that the work shall be performed during our regular working hours of our 
regular working days. If overtime work is mutually agreed upon and performed, an additional charge therefore, at our usual 
rates for such work, shall be added to the contract price. The performance of our work hereunder is conditioned on your 
performing the preparatory work and supplying the necessary data specified on the front of this proposal or in the attached 
specification, if any. Should we be required to make an unscheduled return to your site to begin or complete the work due to 
your request, acts or omissions, then such return visits shall be subject to additional charges at our then current labor rates.

6. Title to any material to be furnished hereunder shall pass to you when final payment for such material is received. In addition, 
we shall retain a security interest in all material furnished hereunder and not paid for in full. You agree that a copy of this 
Agreement may be used as a financing statement for the purpose of placing upon public record our interest in any material 
furnished hereunder, and you agree to execute a UCC -1 form or any other document reasonably requested by us for that 
purpose.

7. Except insofar as your equipment may be covered by an Otis maintenance or service contract, it is agreed that we will make 
no examination of your equipment other than that necessary to do the work described in this contract and assume no 
responsibility for any part of your equipment except that upon which work has been done under this contract.

8. Otis shall not be liable for any loss, damage or delay due to any cause beyond our reasonable control including, but not limited 
to, acts of government, strikes, lockouts, other labor disputes, fire, explosion, theft, floods, water damage, weather damage, 
extreme weather, traffic conditions, epidemic, pandemic, quarantine (including Covid-19), sabotage, cyber security, national 
emergency, act of terrorism, earthquake, riot, civil commotion, war or insurrection, vandalism, misuse, abuse, mischief, or acts 
of God or nature.

9. We warrant that all services furnished will be performed in a workmanlike manner. We also warrant that any equipment provided 
hereunder shall be free from defects in workmanship and material. Our sole responsibility under this warranty shall be at our 
option to correct any defective services and to either repair or replace any component of the equipment found to be defective 
in workmanship or material provided that written notice of such defects shall have been given to us by you within ninety (90) 
days after completion of the work or such longer period as may be indicated on the front of this form. All defective parts that 
are removed and replaced by us shall become our property. We do not agree under this warranty to bear the cost of repairs 
or replacements due to vandalism, abuse, misuse, neglect, normal wear and tear, modifications not performed by us, improper 
or insufficient maintenance by others, or any causes beyond our control. We shall conduct, at our own expense, the entire 
defense of any claim, suit or action alleging that, without further combination, the use by you of any equipment provided 
hereunder directly infringes any patent, but only on the conditions that (a) we receive prompt written notice of such claim, suit 
or action and full opportunity and authority to assume the sole defense thereof, including settlement and appeals, and all 
information available to you for such defense; (b) said equipment is made according to a specification or design furnished by 
us; and (c) the claim, suit or action is brought against you. Provided all of the foregoing conditions have been met, we shall, at 
our own expense, either settle said claim, suit or action or shall pay all damages excluding consequential damages and costs 
awarded by the court therein and, if the use or resale of such equipment is finally enjoined, we shall, at our option, (i) procure 
for you the right to use the equipment, (ii) replace the equipment with equivalent noninfringing equipment, (iii) modify the 
equipment so it becomes noninfringing but equivalent, or (iv) remove the equipment and refund the purchase price (if any) less 
a reasonable allowance for use, damage and obsolescence.
THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH HEREIN ARE THE EXCLUSIVE WARRANTIES GIVEN; WE MAKE NO OTHER WARRANTIES EXPRESS 
OR IMPLIED, AND SPECIFICALLY MAKE NO WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR OF FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE; AND 
THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES SET FORTH IN THIS ARTICLE ARE IN LIEU OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES AND ANY OTHER OBLIGATION OR 
LIABILITY ON OUR PART.

10. Under no circumstances shall either party be liable for special, indirect, liquidated, or consequential damages in contract, tort, 
including negligence, warranty or otherwise, notwithstanding any indemnity provision to the contrary. Notwithstanding any 
provision in any contract document to the contrary, our acceptance is conditioned on being allowed additional time for the 
performance of the Work due to delays beyond our reasonable control. Your remedies set forth herein are exclusive and our 
liability with respect to any contract, or anything done in connection therewith such as performance or breach thereof, or from 

70

Section X, Itemd.



Page 6 of 6

O
TIS

 S
ER

VI
C

E 
A

N
D 

RE
PA

IR
 O

RD
ER

the manufacture, sale, delivery, installation, repair or use of any equipment furnished under this contract, whether in contract, 
in tort (including negligence), in warranty or otherwise, shall not exceed the price for the equipment or services rendered.

11. To the fullest extent permitted by law, you agree to defend, indemnify, and hold Otis harmless against any claim or suit for 
personal injury or property damage alleged to arise out of this contract, except to the extent that such damage or injury has 
been adjudicated as having been caused by Otis’ sole negligence.  In the event that Otis is requested to provide hoistway 
cartop/pit access to you, and/or to third parties acting at your request, direction, or control, and which may be subject to 
additional charges at Otis’ sole discretion, then in addition to the foregoing defense, indemnity and hold harmless obligations, 
you shall carry and maintain the following insurance throughout the duration of such work in the hoistway/cartop/pit areas, and 
will furnish to Otis a certificate of insurance evidencing the following: Commercial General Liability insurance, written on an 
occurrence basis, with limits on a per occurrence basis of at least $2,000,000 for personal injury or death, and $2,000,000 for 
property damage, naming Otis as additional insured.  Such insurance shall be issued by an insurer authorized to do business in 
the state or province where the property is located and the equipment and/or services are to be rendered, shall contain a 
clause in the policy setting forth the insurer’s acceptance of liability as set forth in this agreement, and a clause pursuant to 
which the insurer waives any right of subrogation as to Otis.  This policy shall be written as a primary policy only, and not 
contributing to or in excess of any insurance carried by Otis.  You shall provide Otis with at least thirty (30) days prior written 
notice of cancellation or material change in the coverage.

12. It is agreed that after completion of our work, you shall be responsible for ensuring that the operation of any equipment being 
furnished hereunder is periodically inspected. The interval between such inspections shall not be longer than what may be 
required by the applicable governing safety code.

13. In furtherance of OSHA’s directive contained in 29 C.F.R. § 1910.147(f)(2)(i), which requires that a service provider (an “outside 
employer”) and its customer (an “on-site employer”) must inform each other of their respective lock out/tag out (“LOTO”) 
procedures whenever outside servicing personnel are to be engaged in control of hazardous energy activities on the customer’s 
site, Otis incorporates by reference its mechanical LOTO procedures and its electrical LOTO procedures. These procedures can 
be obtained at www.otis.com by clicking on “Tools & Resources” on the home page, selecting “Lockout Tagout Policy” under 
the “Safety Information” column and downloading the “Lockout Tagout Policy Otis 6.0” and “Mechanical Energy Policy Otis 
7.0,” or the then most current version, both of which are in .pdf format. You agree that you will disseminate these procedures 
throughout your organization to the appropriate personnel who may interact with Otis personnel while Otis personnel are 
working on site at your facility and will ensure that such personnel comply with these LOTO procedures while Otis personnel are 
working on site.

14. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof and may not be 
modified by any terms on your order form or any other document and supersedes any prior written or oral communication 
relating to the same subject. Any amendment or modifications to this Agreement shall not be binding upon either party unless 
agreed to in writing by an authorized representative of each party.

15. This Contract will be deemed voidable, even after execution, if it is determined by Otis that performance of the services and/or 
engagement in the contractual relationship/transaction will violate, or is otherwise restricted by, any and all laws, regulations 
and/or orders, including sanctions laws, that are applicable to Otis or otherwise apply to Otis’ operations.

16. By accepting delivery of parts incorporating software, you agree that the transaction is not a sale of such software but merely 
a license to use such software solely for operating the unit(s) for which the part was provided, not to copy or let others copy 
such software for any purpose whatsoever, to keep such software in confidence as a trade secret, and not to transfer possession 
of such part to others except as a part of a transfer of ownership of the equipment in which such part is installed, provided that 
you inform us in writing about such ownership transfer and the transferee agrees in writing to abide by the above license terms 
prior to any such transfer. 

71

Section X, Itemd.



 

 1 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT DEVIATION AMENDMENT 

 

 This Winter Service Agreement Deviation Amendment (hereafter “Deviation Agreement” made 

this ____ day of October, 2024, by and between the City of Mackinac Island (City), Shepler’s St. Ignace, 

Inc., d/b/a Shepler’s Mackinac Island Ferry (Shepler’s) Mackinac Island Ferry Company (MIFC), d/b/a 

Arnold Transit Co., and the Mackinac Island Transportation Authority (MITA). 

 

 Whereas, the City and Shepler’s are parties to a Franchise Agreement dated July 1, 2012, as 

amended, and 

 

Whereas, the City and MIFC are parties to a Franchise Agreement dated July 1, 2012, as amended, 

and 

 

 Whereas, the Franchise Agreements require one of the franchisees to provide winter ferry service 

to and from the City of Mackinac Island from November 1st through April 20th of any calendar year; and 

 

 Whereas, franchisee MIFC is the winter service provider through April 20th 2028 pursuant to an 

Agreement for Winter Ferry Service dated October 18th, 2023 between the City of Mackinac Island and 

MIFC (“Winter Service Agreement”); and 

 

 Whereas, the City assigned its rights under the Winter Service Agreement to the MITA subject to 

certain terms and conditions; and  

 

 Whereas, MIFC has requested certain changes to the details of the Winter Service Agreement; and 

 

 Wherefore, the City of Mackinac Island, Shepler’s, MIFC, and MITA hereby agree to the 

following deviations from the Winter Service Agreement under the following terms and conditions:  

 

1. MIFC will add the following ferry boats to be utilized under the Winter Service Agreement:  

a. Captain Shepler, which has a heated cabin for 150 passengers (265 passengers total) and an 

aluminum haul. 

b. Wyandot, which has a heated cabin for 150 passengers (265 passengers total) and an 

aluminum haul. 

c. Maverick, which has a heated cabin for 150 passengers and ice breaking capabilities. 

d. Senator, which has a heated cabin for 55 passengers and ice breaking capabilities.  

2. MIFC will remove the Chippewa from its listed ferry boats under the Winter Service Agreement. 

3. MIFC will utilize certain fast boats until ice conditions no longer allow their use. 

4. MIFC will add the following docks to be utilized under the Winter Service Agreement:  

a. Shepler’s Mackinac Island Dock (Restrooms will remain open and available to the public) 

72

Section X, Iteme.



 

 2 

b. Shepler’s St. Ignace Dock located at 601 N. State Street (heated waiting room and 

restrooms will remain open and available to the public). 

5. MIFC will utilize Shepler’s docks until ice conditions hinder their use, at which time it will utilize 

Dock 1 in St. Ignace (the old Arnold Main Dock) and the Main Arnold Dock on Mackinac Island. 

6. MIFC will not offer valet parking options. 

7. Regarding non-seasonal vehicle parking: While utilizing the Shepler’s St. Ignace Dock, there are 

740 parking spots available and free daily onsite parking will be available, with overnight onsite 

parking at a rate of $20.00 per night. MIFC will also offer free offsite parking at 740 N. State 

Street, St. Ignace.  

8. All MIFC/Arnold Transit Co. paid seasonals will continue to park in their current location. 

MIFC/Shepler’s will Shuttle to and from their dock locations. 

9. MIFC will continue to provide free courtesy shuttle services to and from main land locations 

including MIFC/ATCO parking lots, Shepler’s parking Lots, St. Ignace Airport, area hotels, and 

other designated locations. 

10. Passengers with a valid island resident pass, season pass, or commuter card for MIFC/ATCO or 

Shepler’s will have their $5.00 surcharged fee waived. The $5.00 surcharge fee will be required 

with all other types of tickets. 

11. MIFC will work with Shepler’s to provide service under MIFC’s control and franchise agreement 

for part of the 2024-2025 winter season. This may include use of Shepler’s docks, vessels, 

ticketing systems, and work force, but all winter service will be under the control of MIFC. 

12. MIFC/Shepler’s updated ferry schedule provided to the City at its __________________, 2024 

meeting is accepted by all parties.  

13. All terms of this Deviation Agreement are conditioned on the services being equal to or better than 

the services provided in previous years with the normal winter service vessels. 

 

All parties acknowledge that this Deviation Agreement shall not bind or benefit any party regarding 

future deviations from the Winter Service Agreement or required operations under that Agreement or the 

Franchise Agreements, nor will any party be compensated or penalized for this Deviation Agreement. 

73

Section X, Iteme.



 

 3 

 

       CITY OF MACKINAC ISLAND, By: 

 

       ________________________________________ 

       Margaret Doud, Its Mayor 

        

        

       SHEPLER’S ST. IGNACE, INC., D/B/A   

       SHEPLER’S MACKINAC ISLAND FERRY, by: 

 

 

       ________________________________________ 

       Chris Shepler, Its President 

 

        

       MACKINAC ISLAND FERRY COMPANY, D/B/A  

       ARNOLD TRANSIT COMPANY 

       By: 

          

  

       ________________________________________ 

       _____________________, Its ________________ 

 
         

MACKINAC ISLAND TRANSPORTATION 

AUTHORITY, By: 

          

  

       ________________________________________ 

       _____________________, Its ________________ 

 
         

 

 

74

Section X, Iteme.



75

Section XI, Itema.



76

Section XI, Itemb.



77

Section XI, Itemb.



78

Section XI, Itemb.



79

Section XI, Itemb.



80

Section XI, Itemb.



81

Section XI, Itemb.



82

Section XI, Itemb.



83

Section XI, Itemb.



84

Section XI, Itemb.



85

Section XI, Itemb.



86

Section XI, Itemb.



87

Section XI, Itemb.



88

Section XI, Itemb.



89

Section XI, Itemb.



90

Section XI, Itemb.



91

Section XI, Itemb.



92

Section XI, Itemb.



93

Section XI, Itemb.



94

Section XI, Itemb.



95

Section XI, Itemb.



96

Section XI, Itemb.



97

Section XI, Itemb.



98

Section XI, Itemb.



99

Section XI, Itemb.



100

Section XI, Itemb.



101

Section XI, Itemb.



102

Section XI, Itemb.



103

Section XI, Itemb.



104

Section XI, Itemb.



105

Section XI, Itemb.



106

Section XI, Itemb.



107

Section XI, Itemb.



108

Section XI, Itemb.



109

Section XI, Itemb.



110

Section XI, Itemb.



111

Section XI, Itemb.



112

Section XI, Itemb.



113

Section XI, Itemb.



114

Section XI, Itemb.



115

Section XI, Itemb.



116

Section XI, Itemb.



117

Section XI, Itemb.



118

Section XI, Itemb.



119

Section XI, Itemb.



120

Section XI, Itemb.



121

Section XI, Itemb.



122

Section XI, Itemb.



123

Section XI, Itemb.



124

Section XI, Itemb.



125

Section XI, Itemb.



126

Section XI, Itemb.



127

Section XI, Itemb.



128

Section XI, Itemb.



129

Section XI, Itemb.



130

Section XI, Itemb.



131

Section XI, Itemb.



132

Section XI, Itemb.



133

Section XI, Itemb.



134

Section XI, Itemb.



135

Section XI, Itemb.



136

Section XI, Itemb.



137

Section XI, Itemb.



138

Section XI, Itemb.



139

Section XI, Itemb.



140

Section XI, Itemb.



141

Section XI, Itemb.



142

Section XI, Itemb.



143

Section XI, Itemb.



144

Section XI, Itemb.



145

Section XI, Itemb.



146

Section XI, Itemb.



147

Section XI, Itemb.



148

Section XI, Itemb.



149

Section XI, Itemb.



150

Section XI, Itemb.



151

Section XI, Itemb.



152

Section XI, Itemb.



153

Section XI, Itemb.



154

Section XI, Itemb.



155

Section XI, Itemb.



156

Section XI, Itemb.



157

Section XI, Itemb.



158

Section XI, Itemb.



159

Section XI, Itemb.



160

Section XI, Itemb.



161

Section XI, Itemb.



162

Section XI, Itemb.



163

Section XI, Itemb.



164

Section XI, Itemb.



165

Section XI, Itemb.



166

Section XI, Itemb.



167

Section XI, Itemb.



168

Section XI, Itemb.



169

Section XI, Itemb.



170

Section XI, Itemb.



171

Section XI, Itemb.



172

Section XI, Itemb.



173

Section XI, Itemb.



174

Section XI, Itemb.



175

Section XI, Itemb.



176

Section XI, Itemb.



177

Section XI, Itemb.



178

Section XI, Itemb.



179

Section XI, Itemb.



180

Section XI, Itemb.



181

Section XI, Itemb.



182

Section XI, Itemb.



183

Section XI, Itemb.



184

Section XI, Itemb.



185

Section XI, Itemb.



186

Section XI, Itemb.



187

Section XI, Itemb.



188

Section XI, Itemb.



189

Section XI, Itemb.



190

Section XI, Itemb.



191

Section XI, Itemb.



192

Section XI, Itemb.



193

Section XI, Itemb.



194

Section XI, Itemb.



195

Section XI, Itemb.



196

Section XI, Itemb.



197

Section XI, Itemb.



198

Section XI, Itemb.



199

Section XI, Itemb.



200

Section XI, Itemb.



201

Section XI, Itemb.



202

Section XI, Itemb.



203

Section XI, Itemb.



204

Section XI, Itemb.



 
 

A T T O R N E Y S  &  C O U N S E L O R S  A T  L A W  
 

406 Bay Street, Suite 300 • Petoskey, MI 49770 • T: (231) 347-1200 • F:  248-901-4040• plunkettcooney.com 

 

 
 
 
 
 

October 11, 2024 
 
 
 
Mackinac Island City Council 
P.O. Box 455 
Mackinac Island, MI 49757 
 
RE: Lot split for 1274 Mission Street (Parcel # 051-500-008-00)  
 
Dear Council Members: 
 
I represent Mission Street, Mackinac Island, LLC as owner of the above referenced 
property. The property is also referred to as Lots 13 and 16, Assessors Plat No. 1 per the 
survey attached. When the owner purchased the property, Lot 13 and Lot 16 were 
combined for tax purposes which is why the two lots only have one tax identification 
number. 

The City of Mackinac Island Planning Commission reviewed the owner’s request to 
convey Lot 13 to Mission Street Cottage, LLC. The Planning Commission approved the 
request. We also understand this request was approved by the City Assessor. 

The City’s Engineer advised that the owner needs the approval of the City Council as does 
Mackinac County Equalization. We are asking, therefore, to place this matter on the Agenda 
of the next City Council meeting for its approval. Also, please refer to the attached Petition 
(Lot Split Form), Resolution, legal descriptions and the Survey. 

We thank you for your consideration.  
 
Very truly yours, 

 
     PLUNKETT COONEY 
 
 
 
     James J. Murray 
     Direct Dial: 231-348-6413 
 
 
Open.30255.42118.35296809-1 

205

Section XI, Itemc.



Petition for Platted Lot Split 

Lots Known As: Lots 13 and 16, Assessor's Plat No. 1, City of Mackinac Island  

The undersigned petitions the Council of the City of Mackinac Island to split (reconfigure) a platted 
lot, pursuant to MCI, 560.263, which lot is solely owned by Mission Street Mackinac Island, LLC.  

A. The Lot owned is described as follows: 
Lots 13 and 16, Assessor's Plat No 1, City of Mackinac Island, MI. 

B. A Copy of a drawing showing the lot before and after the split is attached as Exhibit "A" 

C. The lot is in the following zone under the City Zoning Ordinance: MD – Market 

D. What is the purpose of the request to split the lot? To move the existing structure to Lot 
16 and to construct a new residence on Lot 13. 

E. The undersigned represents that the land is not encumbered by any lien, mortgage or other 
interest, and that owner has approved this request to split in writing. 

206

Section XI, Itemc.



 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mackinac Island, held the ____ of October, 
2024, the following resolution was offered by Councilperson ________ and seconded by 
Councilperson_______________ 

 
Pursuant to the request of Mission Street, Mackinac Island, LLC, (owner) for property located 

on Market Street, Mackinac Island, to split off a portion of Tax Parcel # 051-500-008-00, City of 
Mackinac Island, Michigan. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, (if applicable), that pursuant to Section 263 of the Subdivision Control Act 

(Act 288 of 1967) as amended, (MCLA 560.263), the following parcels, Tax Parcel # 051-500-008-
00 City of Mackinac Island, Mackinac County, Michigan, may be split into two parcels.  Said new 
parcels being set forth below: 
 

Lot Remaining with Mackinac Street, Mackinac Island, LLC 
 
Lot 16, Assessor's Plat No 1, City of Mackinac Island, Mackinac County, Michigan. 
According to the recorded Plat thereof, recorded in Liber 2 of Plats, Page 41. 
Subject to any Easements, Restrictions or Reservations of Record. 
 
Lot Splitting off to Mission Street Cottage, LLC 
 
Lot 13, Assessor's Plat No 1, City of Mackinac Island, Mackinac County, Michigan. 
According to the recorded Plat thereof, recorded in Liber 2 of Plats, Page 41. 
Subject to any Easements, Restrictions or Reservations of Record. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the authorized split in said Parcel shall not be further split without 
permission of the City of Mackinac Island.  
 
Those voting yes: ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Those voting no: _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Resolution was declared:   Adopted   /   Denied.  
 
       _______________________________________________ 
       Danielle Leach, City Clerk 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
COUNTY OF MACKINAC ) ss. 
 
I, Danielle Leach the duly qualified and acting Clerk of the City of Mackinac Island, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council at a meeting 
held on _______________, 2024, the original of which is on file in my office. Public notice of said meeting 
was given pursuant to and in compliance with Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have veto affixed my official signature this  _____ day of__________, 2024. 
 
        ________________________________________ 

Danielle Leach ,City Clerk 
 
Open.30255.42118.35249648-2 

207

Section XI, Itemc.



Mackinac County Equalization 1 of 1 

Lot Split Form 

Submitted by: Mission Street, Mackinac Island, LLC 

Date Submitted: ___________________ 

Owner Name:  Mission Street, Mackinac Island, LLC 

Parcel Number: 051-500-008-00 

Brief Description of Proposed Split: Separate out the two Lots included in this 

parcel (i.e. Lots 13 and 16), Assessor’s Plat No. 1 

Parcel Numbers & New Descriptions OR attach documentation of correct 

description (RE: Survey, Real Estate Summary or Map): Separate parcel nos. for 

Lot 13, Assessor’s Plat No. 1 and Lot 16, Assessor’s Plat No. 1.  Lot 13 will remain 

in the same ownership (Mission Street, Mackinac Island, LLC) and Lot 16 will be 

deeded to Mission Street Cottage, LLC.  

Please check all boxes that apply: 

X  Retaining Ownership 

X  Change in ownership/Waiting on deed 

  Five Year Property Tax Certificate (preceding the date of the form) from   

            County Treasurer Attached.  Per House Bill No. 4055 Effective 09/16/2019          

The following section to be completed by the reviewer. 

Date Received: ____________________________ 

Date Reviewed: ____________________________ 

X

X

208

Section XI, Itemc.



209

Section XI, Itemc.



Remaining with Mackinac Street, Mackinac Island, LLC 
Lot 16, Assessor's Plat No 1, City of Mackinac Island, Mackinac County, Michigan. 
According to the recorded Plat thereof, recorded in Liber 2 of Plats, Page 41. 
Subject to any Easements, Restrictions or Reservations of Record. 

Splitting to Mission Street Cottage, LLC 
Lot 13, Assessor's Plat No 1, City of Mackinac Island, Mackinac County, Michigan. 
According to the recorded Plat thereof, recorded in Liber 2 of Plats, Page 41. 
Subject to any Easements, Restrictions or Reservations of Record. 
30255.42118.35249529-1 

210

Section XI, Itemc.



211

Section XI, Itemd.



212

Section XI, Iteme.



213

Section XI, Iteme.



214

Section XI, Itemf.



215

Section XI, Itemf.



216

Section XI, Itemf.



217

Section XI, Itemf.



218

Section XI, Itemg.



219

Section XI, Itemg.



220

Section XI, Itemh.



221

Section XI, Itemh.



222

Section XI, Itemi.



223

Section XI, Itemj.



224

Section XI, Itemk.



225

Section XI, Iteml.



226

Section XI, Iteml.



227

Section XI, Itemm.



228

Section XI, Itemn.



229

Section XI, Itemn.



230

Section XI, Itemo.



231

Section XI, Itemo.



232

Section XI, Itemo.



233

Section XI, Itemo.



234

Section XI, Itemo.



235

Section XI, Itemo.



236

Section XI, Itemo.



237

Section XI, Itemp.



238

Section XI, Itemq.



239

Section XI, Itemr.



240

Section XI, Itemr.



241

Section XI, Items.



242

Section XI, Items.



243

Section XI, Items.



244

Section XI, Items.



245

Section XI, Itemt.



246

Section XI, Itemt.


	Top
	Section IV, Itema.	Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting, held on October 2, 2024
	October 2, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes

	Section V, Itema.	Treasurer’s Report - October 16, 2024
	Treasurer Report October 16, 2024

	Section VI, Itema.	October 16, 2024 Payables
	10.16.2024 Payables Spreadsheet

	Section VI, Itemb.	October 17, 2024 Payroll Spreadsheet & Gusto Report
	10.17.2024 Payroll Spreadsheet
	10.17.2024 Gusto Payroll Report

	Section IX, Itema.	Letter from James Murray regarding the draft Master Plan
	Letter to City of Mackinac Island Planning Commission re Draft Master Plan

	Section IX, Itemb.	Email from Kevin Doyle regarding the use of Manor V property by O’Boyle & Co. for materials storage during the Forest Way duplex construction
	FWT - Manor V

	Section X, Itema.	Request for approval of two (2) trailer permits, submitted by Eric Bauer, for building material and snowmobile storage
	E. Bauer Trailer Permits

	Section X, Itemb.	Request for approval for (3) vehicle permits, submitted by Belonga Excavating, to excavate a foundation for Andrew Doud at 1274 Mission St.
	Belonga - Andrew Doud - Mission Street

	Section X, Itemc.	Request for approval of (3) vehicle and (4) trailer permits, submitted by Action Service Construction, for the construction of workforce housing for the Harbour View Inn at 7596 7th Street
	Action Service - 7th Street

	Section X, Itemd.	Request for approval of three (3) quotes from Otis Elevator for Code Required Testing - CAT 1 Hydro Package (Community Hall, Stuart House, Courthouse)
	Otis - Community Hall
	Otis - Courthouse
	Otis - Stuart House

	Section X, Iteme.	Winter Service Agreement Deviation
	Winter Service Agreement Deviation -2024

	Section XI, Itema.	Request for approval for the Maintenance Dept. to purchase new Poly Wafer kit (power broom) for John Deere tractors / street cleaning
	Maint. Dept. Power Broom

	Section XI, Itemb.	Request for approval to authorize the distribution of the draft Master Plan for review in accordance with the Michigan Planning Enabling Act
	Planning Commisson 1
	Master Plan 2

	Section XI, Itemc.	Request for approval of the Lot Split Application, submitted by James Murray on behalf of Mission Street, Mackinac Island, LLC & Mission Street Cottage, LLC
	Letter to Mackinac Island City Council re Lot Split for 1274 Mission Street

	Section XI, Itemd.	Request for approval of an Off-Island business license application for RNC Paint Systems
	RNC business license

	Section XI, Iteme.	Request for approval of (2) vehicle permits, submitted by Mission Point, for (2) CAT telehandlers for new shingles on the west end of the hotel
	Mission Point

	Section XI, Itemf.	Request for approval of (1) vehicle & (2) trailer permits, submitted by Enterprise Vending, to remove arcade games from Mission Point
	Enterprise Vending
	enterprise email

	Section XI, Itemg.	Request for approval of a vehicle & trailer permit, submitted by Robert Benkendorf, to move household goods to their new house in Stonebrook North
	Benkendorf

	Section XI, Itemh.	Request for approval of a vehicle and trailer permit for Belonga Plumbing & Heating to move a job trailer to Forest Way Townhomes for work on Phase III
	Belonga P&H

	Section XI, Itemi.	Request for approval of a Off-Island business license application for Northern Bear Inc. dba Stanley Steamer Northern Michigan
	Stanley Steamer BL

	Section XI, Itemj.	Request for approval of a vehicle permit for Northern Bear Inc. dba Stanley Steamer Northern Michigan for carpet cleaning – 1366 Church Street, 7300 Main St., & 1493 Astor St.
	Stanley Steemer

	Section XI, Itemk.	Request for approval of a trailer permit for Bob Hoffman to haul counter tops to his residence at 8704 Stonecliffe Dr. (Hoffman Haus)
	Hoffman Trailer

	Section XI, Iteml.	Request for approval of a preapproved vehicle permit, submitted by Belonga Excavating, for emergency sewer repairs at 7707 Mahoney Ave. (Callewaert)
	Belonga - Preapproved - Mahoney

	Section XI, Itemm.	Request for approval of a Temp. Sidewalk Obstruction Permit for RNC Paint Systems
	RNC Sidewalk

	Section XI, Itemn.	Request for approval of a vehicle permit, submitted by RNC Paint Systems, for painting at Mission Church - 6670 Main St.
	RNC TMVP

	Section XI, Itemo.	Request for approval of (7) trailer permits, submitted by Fabcon Precast, for the mobilization of precast concrete panel installation at the Wastewater Treatment project
	Fabcon Trailers WWTP

	Section XI, Itemp.	Request for approval of a vehicle permit, submitted by O’Boyle & Co, to haul trusses to the Forest Way Townhomes phase III project
	O'Boyle FWT Trusses

	Section XI, Itemq.	Request for approval of an Off-Island Business License application for Crosscut Concrete Cutting, Inc.
	Cross Cut

	Section XI, Itemr.	Request for approval of (2) vehicle & (2) trailer permits, submitted by Cupps Masonry, for work at the Hoban Hill & School housing projects
	Cupps

	Section XI, Items.	Request for approval for (3) vehicle & (1) trailer permit, submitted by Belonga Excavating, for work at school for new housing
	Belonga - School

	Section XI, Itemt.	Request for approval of (2) vehicle permits, submitted by Chippewa Hotel, for Schwab Contracting to install a new roof at the Millennium, located at 6918 Main St.
	Chip-Schwab TMVP

	Bottom

